107
IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED % B Bl F% & IR 2 &

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(REREFMXLZERAF)
(Stock code B&RH5R: 167)

EMBRACING

Innovations

that enhance the quality of life BIETE = AA




Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Directors and Senior Management of the Group
Management Discussion and Analysis
Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Directors' Report

Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Group Financial Summary

>

NEEFR
TRHmES
ARBEFLAREEE

BB w R

ESeREE
A GRS
meBmkEMEERER

FRAaMBARRE

3

GABREDE
BARLRER
GABTBRANE

SEMHHE

CONTENTS
A &%

22
30
56
83
96
104
105
107
108
10

183

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F3

1



CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors:

Foo Piau Phang (Chairman)

Qi Miao (re-designated from Non-executive Director to
Executive Director on September |1, 2017)

Hou Kaai Wem (resigned on March 1, 2017)

Non-Executive directors:

Song Rongrong

Wu Gang (appointed on March 2, 2018)
Yan Keya (appointed on March 2, 2018)
Han Hongtu (appointed on March 2, 2018)
Xin Kexia (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Jing Tian (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Shi Changyun (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Independent Non-Executive directors:

Yang Xiongsheng
Zhao Yuhong

Li Quan

Duh Jia-Bin

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Foo Piau Phang (Chairman)
Qi Miao (appointed on September |1, 2017)
Hou Kaai Wem (resigned on March 1, 2017)

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREEMER AT

EEg

HITESE

fTTT?T%(If)

B (RN=—E—tFLA+—H

HﬂéEa&ﬂﬁ%%ﬂfﬂ%#ﬂﬁ%%)
BRI (R _F—tF=A—HEEI)

FHTES:

St )\¢ AZHEZE)
BRE(M-F-N\F=A-HEZI)
i

BRE( :;ﬁ—}\i AZREZ{E)
FrRERK(M-F-NF=A-HEEI)
ARR-F—-/\F=ZAZAFHE)

mERE(MR-Z-N\F=AZHEEI)

BYFHTES:

Bk
fizarAl
i

BiEAR
HEE(ER)
BHR-F—CENA - REEE)
BUX(N=F—LF=A—BRE)



AUDIT COMMITTEE

Yang Xiongsheng (Chairman)
Zhao Yuhong
Li Quan

NOMINATION AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Foo Piau Phang (Chairman)
Li Quan
Duh Jia-Bin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Zhao Yuhong (Chairman)
Song Rongrong
Duh Jia-Bin

COMPANY SECRETARY

Gao Keying (appointed on April 8, 2017)
Suen To Wai (appointed on January I, 2017 and resigned on April 8, 2017)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Foo Piau Phang
Gao Keying (appointed on April 8, 2017)
Suen To Wai (appointed on January |, 2017 and resigned on April 8, 2017)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEEH

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

SOLICITOR

Bermuda:

Conyers Dill & Pearman

SHARE REGISTRARS

Bermuda:

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton, HM | | Bermuda

Hong Kong:

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F.

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point

Hong Kong

BERMUDA REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM |1

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Block C, 9th Floor, Kaiser Estate
41 Man Yue Street

Hunghom

Kowloon

Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
167

WEBSITES

www.idthk.com
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFREHES

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the Group's annual results

for the year ended December 31, 2017.

NO MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS CHANGED

On December 31, 2017, Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu Hongtu™),
a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock code: 600122), through its indirect wholly owned subsidiary
Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc. ("Hongtu (Seychelles)™), holds 1,310,896,765 shares
of the Company, representing approximately 50.42% of the entire issued shares of the
Company. There had been no major shareholders change in the year ended December

31,2017.

Jiangsu Hongtu has a large and comprehensive business portfolio. Its main businesses
are: (1) information technology (IT) retailing, supported by chain retail stores, selling
computers, digital products, communications products, network and server devices,
office automation equipment, as well as software and IT related books; (2) industrial

manufacturing, which covers such products as optical cables, electric cables, printers and
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communications equipment, among others, (3) real estate, which entails development
and operation of high-end residential properties, and (4) the Internet finance, and (5) art

auction.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2017 was amounted to
HK$516.6 million (FY2016: HK$565.0 million), which was primarily due to the difficult

retail market conditions in America and Europe.

Gross profit totalled HK$107.1 million (FY2016: HK$99.0 million). Gross profit margin
increased to 20.7% in the year ended December 31, 2017, mainly due to improvement in

manufacturing efficiency.

The Group continued to execute stringent cost controls and streamline organisational
structure and operational procedures. Total operating expenses of the Group, including
research and development costs, distribution and selling expenses, general administrative
expenses and finance cost, amounted to HK$184.8 million (FY2016 (restated): HK$176.3
million). The increment was mainly due to the less reversal of provision for customer

claims and bonus accrued for about HKD16.8 million in FY2017 comparing to FY2016.

Other gains and losses during the year were recorded as losses of HK$ 3.1 million, mainly
due to the allowance for doubtful debts of 9.2 million, (FY2016: gain of HK$6.0 million).

No taxation was provided for the year (FY2016: HK$2.0 million).

Loss for the year ended December 31, 2017 was HK$85.7 million (FY2016: loss of
HK$64.0 million).

OUTLOOK

Despite the uncertain global economic will continue to have a considerable impact on

the growth of the Group, nonetheless there are still opportunities and the Group remains
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFREHES

confident in its strategy in 2018. With the support of our dedicated regional general
manager and experienced e-commerce team, we have expanded our global coverage to
capture the share of online business. The Group continues to cooperate with Sanpower's
subsidiaries, thereby exerting greater synergies in sales, maximizing customer coverage

from offline and online channels, and exploring opportunities in the Asian market.

OREGON SCIENTIFIC (“OS”)

The SLIT category will continue to be the main product category of the OS. A series
of new smart leamning products with richer, scalable content, features and functions will
be launched. There will be more versions of smart globe products, and AR technology
will continue to enhance the customer's product experience. In 2018, we will use more
advanced technologies to enhance our customers’ higher level of smart consumer

experience.

Regarding the smart home category, we will focus on improving our competitiveness. In
2018, we will launch a series of new cross-domain feature connection time and weather
products. In addition, OS will focus on key revenue and sales drivers, simplifying the rest of
the product portfolio. An experienced product marketing team has also been established
to strengthen the launch of new products, increase existing customer participation, and

explore more opportunities in existing markets and new markets.

From the perspective of channel development, we have established an experienced
Amazon platform team to further promote the development of e-commerce business.
At the same time, OS will continue to implement the strategy of “all-channel partnership”
and selected retailers, while promoting OS brand sales through offline retail channels and

online websites and portals.
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The Group will also continue to expand channel coverage and effectively reach target
consumers' sites. OS also helps expand sales capacity by expanding its presence, such as
new airport retail channels, bookstore channels, and hotel channels, and will continue to

use Sanpower Group's The global, especially the United States and China retail channels.

VALUE MANUFACTURING SERVICES (“VMS”)

Viewing from the product & market segment that walkie-talkie is brought back due to the
increase in demand from the security market with serial and on-going threat of terrorist
attack, walkie-talkie will be another key area to strengthen our research & development
capabilities to meet the needs of current customers, focusing on their needs and exploring

additional opportunities to co-operate with them.

H&W will combine wearable with health technologies like Blood Pressure, HRV and
Atrial Fabrillation measurements to help users to monitor their health in a convenient
and comfort setting. Personal health data can be available in the cloud so that their health

status can be remotely monitored.

Besides connectivity, the new features such as artificial intelligence and voice control
can help improve the competitivity of our products. In combination with our Time &
Weather strength, we are developing smart demo, which will show the remote control
and surveillance advantages with loT smart sensor network. As such, we will work with
business development teams to help more new customers in addition to our major

customers like Somfy, Phillips.

Though traditional product lines have supported the development of the Company for so
many vyears, our VMS teams are working with our customers to make changes according
to the market demands. We are entering the product and service markets of high growth
rate, which include digital health and smart life style. As such, we have been further
optimizing our product development teams and invited new technology leaders to help us
enter these markets. Accordingly, we will not only help our customer develop more new

products but also more new product categories.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFREHES

Our VMS business and customers both focus on digital health products, including activity
tracking, blood glucose monitoring, heart rate monitoring, blood pressure monitoring etc.
All these products are related to the big data concept too. As such, our customer and
strategy partners will work with us together to analyze and utilize these data to more
efficiently improve life styles and manage health. For example, in China there is a great
demand for senior care. We are developing a new senior care platform with artificial
intelligence and speech processing technologies. This platform can connect to the health
data management network of our customers and strategy partners. As such, it enables our

customers and partners to more efficiently deliver their services to the users.

Smart lifestyle is also one of the key themes of our product lines. We are perfecting a
smart home and lifestyle platform and developing related products for our customers.
With this platform, we can monitor and record the users home and lifestyle data and
provide the data to our customers. Accordingly, our customers can utilize these valuable
data and provide personalized services, which include home safety, climate control, sleep
management and entertainment. In this way, we believe we can speed up the product

development for our customers and maximize the values for them.

While we swiftly enter the digital health and smart lifestyle markets, we never give up our
traditional product lines. We are continuing to optimize and improve them, reduce the
cost, improve functions and quality. We will outsource some of our low-value products
and further upgrade existing popular products. Further, we are working closely with our

customers to meet the ever changing market demands.
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Besides working the existing customers and developing new ones, our focus includes
continuously improving the efficiency of product developments. We continue to innovate
with our VMS customers and achieve the largest results at the lowest cost. As such, our
customers may have more resources to be invested into new products and make us
more competitive. As such, we are standardizing the technologies shared in our product
development, improving the development efficiency and reducing the cost. In addition, we
can use new technologies with our customers to develop the next generation products.
Besides the maturing activity tracking and heart rate monitoring technologies and demands,
we are investing into the new technologies for digital health, which include blood pressure

monitoring and long distance charging.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | wish to express my gratitude to all shareholders
and business associates for the continuous support. Our deep appreciation also goes to
the management team and staff members for their hard work and dedication in the past

financial period.

Foo Piau Phang

Chairman

March 22,2018
Hong Kong
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

rEEESRSREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FOO PIAU PHANG

Chairman and Executive Director, the Chairman of Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Executive Committee of the Board, aged
56. Mr. Foo is the Senior Vice President of Sanpower Group. Prior to joining Sanpower
Group, Mr. Foo served at Hewlett-Packard as the Senior Vice President and Regional
Managing Director for Asia Pacific & Japan. Before that, Mr. Foo had experience in a
variety of roles, such as President and Chief Executive Officer at Hasee Group Ltd,
President at Dell Inc. (China), Managing Director at Gateway Inc. (China) and Production

Engineer at General Motors (Singapore).

Qi Miao

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director, a member of the Executive Committee
of the board, aged 39. Before joining the Company, Mr. Qi was the Senior Director
of Sanpower Group and was mainly responsible for strategy planning and execution.
Formerly, Mr. Qi was an associate partner at Inventive Strategy Consulting and director at
Huawei Technology Co., Ltd. Prior to that, he worked at Emst & Young (China) Advisory
Limited and advised on strategy and business transformation projects in the PRC. Mr.
Qi has received a master degree in Electrical Engineering from Dresden University of

Technology and a master degree in Business Administration from Peking University.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
SONG RONGRONG

Non-executive Director, aged 40. Mr. Song is the Chief Financial Officer of Jiangsu Hongtu
and the Vice President of HISAP. Formerly, Mr. Song served as the regional general ledger
accountant and regional chief financial officer of HISAP. Mr. Song received a Bachelor
degree in accounting from the China University of Mining and Technology and master

degree in Business Administration from Nanjing University.

Wu Gang

Non-Executive Director, aged 41, Mr. Wu is the Senior Vice President of Sanpower
Group and is the Chairman of the new consumption industrial group and the Chairman
of the new retail industrial group. From February 2008 to March 2013, Mr. Wu served as
the Chairman of Australia-China Education and Migration Service Company, specialized
in global education and VIP immigration consultation services. Mr. Wu has many years
of experience in cross-border investments, M&A, investor relations and corporate
governance. Mr. Wu holds a master degree in Public Administration from the University

of North Carolina.

AEEESRSREEE

FETES
REE

FMTES W5 REERIHEE 2B
BRERTE=R 8@ - RELLMEHE
FRE-=RzREERETRRANGEE -
REERAPEREAR 2 G BLBMUNE
RABTEEERLEMN -

R

FHTES O+ RAERE=-RKE
SREIRY  ZRHAEEXREESER ¥
EEXGEESR -B-TFT/\F-AZE
—=f= H’k%i%&@¢l%ﬂa&
HREBEER AEEBRHERVPER
BARBELE  RELEEBERRE - RHK

B mEEER RARAEERBEIEA
s - RELRAXBLRERARBLH
EEBLE -

M! ]ul

A ll

"ML“

k=g

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#k

15



16

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

rEEESRSREEE

Yan Keya

Non-executive Director, aged 42, Mr. Yan is the Chief Operating Officer of the new
retail industrial group of Sanpower Group and is mainly responsible for operational
management and M&A for the retail business. From November 2005 to May 2013,
Mr. Yan served as the head of strategy and investment division for Li Ning Company
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2331),
responsible for strategic management and investment. Prior to joining Sanpower Group,
from June 2013 to July 2014, he served as the senior strategic investment director for
Fosun International Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 656), responsible for strategy planning at group level and direct investment
in big consumption area. Mr. Yan has many years of experience in strategic management,
cross-border investments, M&A, investor relations, corporate governance, post-merger
integration, etc. Mr. Yan holds a Master of Science degree in Finance from the University

of Strathclyde in the United Kingdom.

Han Hongtu

Non-executive Director, Mr. Han, aged 46, is the Vice President and the Secretary of
the board of directors of Jiangsu Hongtu, and is mainly responsible for capital planning,
information disclosure and assets management. Mr. Han is also assigned to take charge of
the President Office, the Human Resources Department and the Enterprise Management
Center of Jiangsu Hongtu. From January 2000 to February 2003, Mr. Han served in
state-owned provincial enterprises, and was responsible for project investment and
company listing as an investment counselor in Jiangsu D&T Consulting Co,, Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Jiangsu Skyrun Corporation. From April 2003 to March 2010, Mr.
Han worked for Sanpower Group and he was in charge of investments, M&A, assets
operations and capital planning. Mr. Han has many years of experience in M&A, equity
investments and regulations of the governance structure of listed company. Mr. Han holds

a master degree in Business Administration from Maastricht University in Holland.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
YANG XIONGSHENG

Independent non-executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee, aged
58. Mr. Yang is the chair Professor of the accounting and Finance Institute of Nanjing
University, professor, doctoral tutor. He had worked for Lianyungang Finance School
and Lianyungang audit bureau. From 1995, he has worked at the accounting department
of Nanjing University. Presently, he is the chair Professor of the accounting and Finance
Institute of Nanjing University, the managing director of Accounting Society of China
and officer of internal control committee, vice President of Accounting Society of Jiangsu
Province, member of internal control standard committee under the Ministry of Finance,
advisory expert of management accounting; adjunct doctoral tutor at Nanjing University of
Science and Technology, adjunct professor at Anhui University of Finance and Economics.
The main research areas of Mr. Yang: internal control, basic theory of accounting, financial
management and management accounting. Presently, he has published more than 200
papers, monographs and more than 20 textbooks. He directly involved in the research of
specific control criterion and drafting work of the Internal Accounting Control Standards-
Basic Standards by the Ministry of Finance, and he undertook a number of key scientific
researches for the Ministry of Finance. Mr. Yang was graduated at Xuzhou Normal
University in 1981, and he has doctorate of accounting at Dongbei University of Finance

and Economics.

On 5 February 2018, the China Securities Regulatory Committee (CSRC) has issued
a formal decision of administrative penalties (“Decision of Administrative Penalties”)
against Shenji Group Kunming Machine Tool Company Limited) (“Shenji"), a joint stock
limited company incorporated in the People's Republic of China with its H shares listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 300) and its A
shares listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600806), and its directors
and senior management, including Mr. Yang, an independent non-executive Director and
the chairman of the audit committee of the Company, regarding information disclosure
irregularities and breach of securities laws and regulations (“Relevant Matters”). Mr. Yang
was at the material time an independent non-executive Director and Chairman of the
audit committee of Shenji. An announcement of the same was issued and published on

the website of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 23 February 2018.

Mr. Yang has applied for administrative reconsideration to the CSRC after he received the

Decision of Administrative Penalties.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

rEEESRSREEE

ZHAO YUHONG

Independent non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee, aged 50. Ms. Zhao is a Managing Partner at Bohai
Harvest RST (Shanghai) Equity Investment Fund Management Co,, Ltd. Ms. Zhao has spent
her career working for a number of international and Chinese investment banks. Her
previous positions include Managing Director in Investment Banking at BOC Interational,
Managing Director in Investment Banking at CLSA Asia Pacific Markets, Executive Director
in China Investment Banking at JPMorgan Securities, Director in China Investment Banking
at Credit Suisse. Ms. Zhao obtained an MBA degree from York University (Canada), a
Master of Arts degree from University of Western Ontario (Canada) and a Bachelor of

Arts degree from Dalian University of Technology (China).

LI QUAN

Independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee, aged 53. Mr. Li is a seasoned
international banker across commercial and investment banking in London, Hong Kong
and mainland China. He served as the Chief Executive Officer of Australia and New
Zealand Bank (China) Ltd. till August 2014. From 1998 to 2014, as the Country Executive,
Dr. Li was responsible for establishing and managing all The Royal Bank of Scotland
("RBS") business in China. He played a significant role in many strategic projects. Over
his time in China, he also served as Non-executive Directors on the Boards of Suzhou
Trust Ltd. and Galaxy Futures Brokerage Ltd., Chairman of RBS Leasing (China) Ltd, and
a member of Advisory Board of China European International Business School. Dr. Li was
educated both in China and the United Kingdom, holding a Ph.D. in Strategic Management
from Aston Business School, a Master of Science degree in Industrial Management from
Birmingham University and a Bachelor of Engineering degree from Beijing Institute of
Technology. Dr. Li also serves as an independent non-executive director on the House of

Fraser Group board.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUP

DUH JIA-BIN

Independent non-executive Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee, aged 60. Mr. Duh is an
angel investor in technology and telecom related start-ups, and has active participation
in several companies and funds in US, Asia and China. From 1998-2006, Mr. Duh served
as Vice President of Cisco Inc. and President of Cisco China. Mr. Duh was the President
of Microsoft China during the period from 1993 to 1998. He also served at Hewlett-
Packard for over 10 years and held a variety of managerial positions in sales, marketing
and engineering. Mr. Duh is a graduate of the National Chiao Tung University with a
bachelor's degree in engineering and holds an Executive MBA jointly offered by Kellogg
School of Management of Northwestern University and Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology (Kellogg-HKUST). He is the Chairman of the advisory board of New York

University and Nanjing University's joint institute.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2017, due to the unclear global trade prospects and the weak performance of the
global economy, especially the consumer electronics market, the Group's value-added
manufacturing business declined, but the revenue of the Group's self owned brand,
Oregon Scientific, increased compared to the last year due to the influence upon
strengthening new product development and channel expansion by the Company. Overall,

the Group recorded a decrease in total revenue and a net loss in 2017.

At the same time, we implement the following strategies to ensure growth: |) Set up the
Augmented Reality (“AR") team, a software development team to enhance our ability to
grasp the explosive growth opportunity of the AR market and strengthen our cooperation
with customers. 2) Establish a China business team to develop the world's largest market
with growth and strong demand, while customizing and launching products suitable for
this market. In early June, we cooperated with the channels of the Sanpower Group to
distribute products to different cities through offline stores and online channels. 3) Start to
strengthen the cross-border e-commerce team to keep up with development trends to

increase online sales.

During the year, the Group restructured its business based on unique products targeting
different customer segments. The new reporting and operating segments are Connected
Home and Communications (“CoH"), Smart Leaming, and Immersive Technology (“SLIT"),
Health and Wellness (“H&W") and other electronic products. Our business still remains
divided into two overarching categories: |) Value-added Manufacturing Services, which
focuses on providing design, development, and manufacturing services to business clients.
2) Oregon Scientific with its own brand, design, development, manufacturing and selling of

smart living products worldwide.

Year ended December 31, 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

OREGON SCIENTIFIC (“OS”)

In 2017, sales revenue of OS business totaled HK$211.8 million (FY2016: HK$209.6
million), a slight increase from last year, accounting for 41.0% of the Group's total sales
revenue. CoH and SLIT were the main product categories, accounting for 88.9% of OS

sales.

As stated above, the Group's strategy of investing in the development of AR functions in
the category of SLIT (especially the iconic smart earth line) has improved the playability
and learning value of the product and ultimately improved the competitive advantage of
the product. A series of new globe products were launched in 2017, including the world's
first openable globe “Smart Globe Explorer”, the “Starry Globe™ with a luminous night sky
effect, and a built-in 7-inch LCD screen with video and image functions. The revenue of
SLIT in 2017 increased by 104.0% compared with that in 2016, of which 72.0% came from

the contribution of these new products.

Compared with the same period of last year, the experienced cross-border e-commerce
team established by OS accelerated the conversion of distribution channels. Its sales
revenue reached HK$55.0 million in 2017, increased by 72.0% compared with that in
2016. At the same time, the distribution channel conversion strategy will continue to
be implemented. In the foreseeable future, aparting from simplifying the organization
in accordance with the established corporate strategy to reduce fixed costs, the OS
division will continue to strengthen the growth of e-commerce and make full use of core
online platforms including Amazon and key countries’ major platforms to reach terminal
consumer directly. At the same time, we will continue to cultivate partners with high-

margin channel.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In terms of regional distribution, Europe was the largest market, accounting for 48.3% of
total OS revenue, whilst the America decreased to 16.19% and Asia Pacific increased to
35.7% as we allocated more resources and formed several strategic partnerships with the
key channel partners in the Asia market, which were reflected in the revenue growth in
China. In 2017, OS's revenue in China increased by 43.0% over the same period of last
year. OS continued to work hard with Sanpower Group's subsidiaries to make full use of

Sanpower Group's extensive retail channels to expand sales.

Value Manufacturing Services (“VMS”)

In 2017, the Group strengthened its service to VMS customers and made progress
in customer retention, and some old customers increased the number of orders. At
the same time, the Group actively expanded the market of foreign original equipment
manufacturers (“Chuangke”), and participation in multiple international exhibitions. to
attract lots of customers such as Nora, the world's first non-intrusive intelligent snag
device, and Father 10, the world's first AR. First-person shooter games, Tapplock - the
world's first intelligent fingerprint padlock, Bonjour-Al alarm clock, and Intuition Robotic -
senior partner robots, etc, jointly develop advanced technology and more innovative new
products to enhance competition advantages, of which Tapplock and Intuition Robotics
both won the CES 2018 Innovation Award in January. Based on the above efforts, the
Company's revenue from Chuangke reached HK$26.0 million in 2017, a 10 fold increase

from last year.

Due to the trendily weak performance of the global consumer electronics industry, the
sales revenue of the Company's VMS business in 2017 was HK$304.8 million (FY2016:
HK$355.4 million), which accounted for 59.0% of the Group's total revenue. In terms of
product categories, CoH is a major product category, with a 39.2% increase in revenue
from FY2016, which accounted for 39.6% of VMS sales, and contributing HK$120.8 million
in sale revenue. However, the sales revenue of the H&W products declined sharply due

to weak market conditions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEFWER DM

The Telecom team completed the establishment of a handheld full-function technology
platform for marine products during the year, and reaching out to a number of overseas
customers in private network communications industries to obtain orders for handheld
marine machines signed by Japanese customers. This product is currently the most
advanced handheld marine in the world, with the most complete and advanced functions
of the highest class. At the same time, it won the development orders for two maritime

shipboard walkie-talkie projects.

Our H&W team has received contract from a customer developing a wearable devices
that integrated with image sensors and connect to Apple Watch. Customer for a wearable

device with blood pressure measurement is also in the final stage of negotiation.

Similarly, CoH team had discussions with customers developing an Al voice-interactive
smart speaker and connect to Amaon Alexa. The team is also in the final stage negotiation

with a home automation control customer.

WORKING CAPITAL

The inventory balance at December 31, 2017 was HK$130.4 million, increased by 27.6%
compared to the HK$102.2 million at December 31, 2016. The inventory turnover days
increased to 104 days (FY 2016: 80 days).

Trade debtor balances at December 31, 2017 was HK$117.1 million, increased by 9.8
% compared to the HK$106.6 million shown at December 31, 2016. Trade debtor's
turnover days increased to 80 days (FY2016: 69 days).

LIQUIDITY AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT

At December 31, 2017, bank balances and cash of the Group, including short term bank
deposits, were HK$37.2 million (December 31, 2016: HK$80.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, the Group generated its funds mainly from operating activities. The net
cash position (bank balances and cash) at December 31, 2017 amounted to HK$37.2
million (December 31, 2016: HK$80.7 million). The Group maintained sufficient financial

resources to meet all working capital requirements and finances of its commitments.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

At December 31, 2017, there were no finance charges on the Group's assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment for the year ended December
31, 2017 amounted to HK$24.8 million (FY2016: HK$7.5 million) which was all used for
business operations and product development. Source of funds were financed by internal

resources and borrowings.

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and associated Companies

in the course of the year ended December 31, 2017.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend distribution of a final dividend to shareholders of the

Company for the year ended December 31, 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda, was
involved in a tax dispute with the State of Sao Paulo, the Federative Republic of Brazil,
which may cause a maximum tax payment including penalty and interest of approximately
Brazilian Real 3.5 million(equivalent to approximately HK$8.4 million). After seeking the
independent legal advice, the directors of the Company consider that the outcome and
the amount of final payment, if any, are uncertain, and no provision has been made in the

consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE DN

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2017, the Group had 1,087 employees. The Group fully recognizes
the importance of its employees who contribute significantly to its success and continues
to maintain and upgrade the capabilities of its workforce by providing them with adequate

and regular training.

The Group's remuneration policy is to provide compensation packages at market rates
which reward individual's performance and attract, retain and motivate high quality
employees. The compensation packages offered by the Group are comparable with
other organizations of similar size and business nature and are reviewed annually. The
components of employee’s remuneration package consist of base salary, double pay,
fringe benefits including pension scheme, medical insurance, life and personal accident
insurance, employee compensation and business travel insurance as well as incentives like

discretionary cash bonus.

In Xixiang, Shenzhen, China where the Xixiang facilities are located, staff welfare rates
are set with reference to the prevailing labour laws in China. Accommodation and leisure

facilities are also provided to local staff at Xixiang facilities.

The Group's remuneration philosophy for senior executives is based upon creating a

strong link between performance and reward in accordance with the following principles:

I Fixed salaries and benefits are set at median-market level against comparator
groups of companies selected on the basis of similar size and business nature and

benchmarked with the prevailing market conditions; and
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2. Performance-related bonus is linked to the achievement of pre-defined
performance targets including financial targets, performance index and pre-agreed

management objectives.

The emolument of the directors is recommended by the remuneration committee with
reference to companies of comparable business type or scale, and the nature and quantity
of work at both Board and Board Committee levels (including frequency of meetings
and nature of agenda items) in order to compensate directors reasonably for their time
and efforts spent. The directors’ emolument is approved by the Board pursuant to the
mandate granted by the shareholders at annual general meetings. Remuneration are paid
to a director for appointment as a member of a particular committee. Non-executive
directors receive no base pay, benefits, bonus or pension except reimbursement for
expenses incurred in connection with their directorship of the Company. No individual
director is allowed to participate in the procedures for deciding his/her individual
remuneration package. Full details of the remuneration of and fees paid to the directors
for the year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial

statements from page 150 to page 152.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TREARES

The Group is committed to achieving a up to stipulated standard of corporate governance
to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. Throughout the year ended December 31, 2017 under review, the
Company has applied the principles and complied with all code provisions and where
applicable, the recommended best practices prescribed in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code") in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules™) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
except for Code Provision A.2.1(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Code
Provision A.6.7, this Code provision stipulates, inter alia, Independent Non-executive
Directors and other Non- executive Directors, as equal Board members, should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders,
which would be explained in the relevant paragraphs of this report. This report describes
its corporate govemance practices, explains the applications of the principles of the CG

Code and deviations during the year ended December 31, 2017 under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board

During the period between January |, 2017 and February 28, 2017, the Board comprised
eleven directors of whom two are executive directors (separately serve as the chairman
and the chief executive officer) and five are non-executive directors and four are
independent non-executive directors. For the period between March I, 2017 and
September 10, 2017, the Board comprised of ten directors of whom one is executive
director (serves as the chairman and temporarily assume the role of the chief executive
officer), five are non-executive directors and four are independent non-executive
directors. For the period between September |1, 2017 and December 31, 2017, the
Board comprised ten directors of whom two are executive directors (separately serve as
the chairman and the chief executive officer) and four are non-executive Directors and
four are independent non-executive directors. Brief biographical details of the directors
appear in the Directors and Senior Management of the Group section on pages 14 to |9.
An updated list of directors of the Company and their respective roles and functions are

posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's website.
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Appointment, Re-election and Retirement of Directors

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee (“NCGC") reviews the profiles
of the candidates and makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-

election and retirement of directors.

The Company recognises the importance of having the appropriate board composition.
In deciding the board composition, the attributes, skills and expertise among the directors
are considered appropriate to effectively lead and control the Group, taking into account
the scope and nature of its operations. The directors have a mix of core competencies
in areas such as accounting and finance, business and management, industry knowledge
and marketing strategies. The size of the Board is conducive to effective discussion and
decision-making and has an appropriate balance of independent directors to exercise

independent judgment.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance and has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
(the “Policy”) in 2013. Board diversity will be considered by the Company from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to cultural and educational background,
experience, skills, knowledge, length of service, age and gender. The Board composition
is reviewed, considered and discussed by the NCGC on an annual basis and it will make
recommendations to the Board after the review. The Company's business needs will also
be taken into account in determining the optimum composition of the Board. In reviewing
and assessing the composition of the Board as well as selecting candidate(s), the NCGC
will consider all diversity elements according to the Policy and also devised guidelines
for ideal board size, optimum number of executive and non-executive directors and
board membership criteria. The Policy and those guidelines shall be reviewed and revised

periodically to meet business needs of the Group.
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In accordance with the Company's Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the directors shall retire from office. The directors to retire in every year shall be
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-election. Further, any
director appointed by the Board as an additional Board member or fill in a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the following annual general meeting (“AGM") and shall then be
eligible for re-election at the AGM immediately following their appointments. The new
directors shall not be taken into account in determining the number of directors who are
to retire by rotation at that annual general meeting. Election and re-election of directors

will be done by separate resolution.

The names and biographical details of the directors who will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM are set out in the circular accompanying the notice of

AGM.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Newly appointed directors of the Company will receive induction and reference materials
to enable him/her to familiarise himself/herself with the Group's history, mission, business
operations and board and company policies. Each director is briefed and updated
from time to time to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the operations
and business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal and other regulatory

requirements and the governance policies of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development so as to
refresh their knowledge and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities. For the
year ended December 31, 2017, relevant reading materials including regulatory update
and seminar handouts, etc. have been provided to the Directors for their reference and

studying.
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A summary of training taken by the Directors since January |, 2017 up to December 31,

2017 is set out as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERHRES

ATHEBEE —S—+t5—-A—-HE_Z
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Training activities including in-house
activities/briefings, seminars/talks

held by professional organisations and/or

Directors reading materials on relevant topics
BEIES (BEARAREHED,
83 EXAKERoWHE
= BER/BEEERE 2R
Executive Directors: HITES:
Foo Piau Phang R V
Qi Miao (re-designated from non-executive directorto ~ #8#x (RZZE—+tF N A+—H
executive director on September 11, 2017) HIFRTESRAEIRIITES) \
Hou Kaai Wern (resigned on March |, 2017) wIX (RZE—tF=HA—HEHT) \
Non-Executive Directors: FHTEE:
Song Rongrong REE \
Wu Gang (appointed on March 2, 2018) RMR=ZZ-N\F=ZA-REZA) *
Yan Keya (appointed on March 2, 2018) BrE(R_Z-N\F=-A_BREZ{E) *
Han Hongtu (appointed on March 2, 2018) BEE(R_Z—-\F=A_REZT) *
Xin Kexia (resigned on March 2, 2018) FrRR_E-NF=AZAEMT) \
Jing Tian (resigned on March 2, 2018) ARMRZZE-N\FE=AZHEHT) \
Shi Changyun (resigned on March 2, 2018) BREMRZZE-N\F=AZHEHE) \
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHITES:
Yang Xiongsheng 1B RS \
Zhao Yuhong HFAL \
Li Quan T V
Duh Jia-Bin HRAE \

*Note: Induction training was given when Wu Gang, Yan Keya and Han Hongtu were

appointed.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the period between January |, 2017 and December 31, 2017, Mr. Foo Piau Phang
is the chairman of the Company. During the period between January |, 2017 and February
28, 2017, Mr. Hou Kaai Wern is the chief executive officer of the Company. During the
period between March |, 2017 and September 10, 2017, Mr. Foo Piau Phang is the chief
executive officer. During the period between September |1, 2017 and December 31,

2017, Mr. Qi Miao is the chief executive officer of the Company.

Code provision A.6.7: This Code Provision stipulates, inter alia, Independent Non-
executive Directors and Non- executive Directors, as equal Board members, should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders of the Company. Details of directors” attendances at the general meeting

appear on page 39.
Responsibilities of the Board and delegations to management

The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its

businesses by directing and supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular attention paid to the
growth and financial performance of the Group. The principal functions of the Board are

to:
®  establish the strategic direction and development of the Group;

®  determine the broad policies, strategic plans and performance objectives of the

Group;
®  monitor management performance;

®  approve financial plans and annual budgets, major funding proposals, key funding

and investment proposals;

®  oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance;
®  approve the nominations of directors and appointment of key personnel; and

®  assume responsibility for corporate govemance.
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The Board delegates daily operations of the Group to executive directors and senior
executives, while reserving certain key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board are
communicated to the management through executive directors who have attended at

Board meetings and circulation of minutes of Board meetings to the management.

The Board has adopted a set of guidelines to clearly divide the responsibilities of the
Board and the management. Matters reserved for decision and consideration of the Board
include, among others, all matters of strategic importance, corporate governance practices,
legal and regulatory compliance, internal control and risk management, corporate strategy,
operating and capital budgets, statutory financial reports, changes in Board members,
major transactions and investment commitments and remuneration policy of directors and
senior management, financial authorization and approval limits for operating and capital
expenditure, the procurement of goods and services, and the acquisition and disposal of

investments.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, the independent non-
executive directors of the Company have shared their valuable experience with the Board
in the interests of promoting the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
independent non- executive directors of the Company have made significant contribution
of their skills and expertise to the Board committees. All independent non-executive
directors are appointed for a fixed term of three years and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by shareholders at the annual general meetings of the Company

in accordance with the Company's Bye-Laws.

All independent non-executive directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the directors of the Company. The functions

of independent non-executive directors include, but not limited to:

®  participating in Board meetings to bring in independent judgment to bear on
issues of corporate strategy, corporate performance, accountability, resources, key

appointments and standard of conducts;
®  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

®  serving on board committees, if invited; and
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®  scrutinising the Group's performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and

objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors including at least one independent non-executive director with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or relating financial management
expertise. In assessing the independence of the directors, the Board has examined the
different relationships identified under the Listing Rules that might impair the directors'
independence and objectivity. The Board considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent and are satisfied with the directors’ ability to act with
independent judgment. Furthermore, each of the independent non-executive directors has
provided to the Company an annual confirmation of independence required by Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all its independent non-executive directors
to be independent. Each director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Any further re-appointment of an independent non- executive director, who
has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject to separate resolution to

be approved by the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules that the independent

non-executive directors are representing at least one-third of the Board.

RELATIONSHIP

There is no financial, business, family and other material relationship among other

members of the Board.

There has been an effective and balanced Board collectively responsible for the
Company's activities and affairs. The Board members are free to discuss issues properly
put to the Board meetings and express their views and concerns. No individual or small

group can dominate the Board's decision-making process.
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If a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the matter will
be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution of the Board.
The Board will take into account the exceptions to the general voting prohibition, as set
out in the Listing Rules when considering whether a director shall vote on any board
resolution approving any matters in which he has matenial interests or shall he be counted

in the quorum present at the meeting.

MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly at least 4 times a year and holds additional meetings as and
when the Board thinks appropriate. Board committees also hold regular scheduled
meetings to discharge their duties. Meetings via telephone or video-conference are
permitted under the Bye-Laws of the Company. Attendance record of the Board and
Board Committees meetings during the year ended December 31, 2017 is set out on
page 42, 43 and 46.

All Directors have access to the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
Board/Board committees meeting procedures are observed and advising the Board/Board

committees on compliance matters.

In an attempt to accommodate the competing time commitments of directors who sit on
multiple boards, Board/Board committees meetings dates are scheduled well in advance
at the beginning of every calendar year. The Company has given at least 14 days notice
for regular Board and Board Committees meetings. For all other Board/Board committees
meetings, reasonable notices are given. Draft agendas for Board and Board Committee
meetings are prepared by the company secretary and are circulated to all directors for
comment before the meetings. The directors were given the opportunities to include
matters to be discussed in the agenda for all Board and Board Committees meetings.
The company secretary is delegated with the responsibility to prepare these agendas and,
where appropriate, take into account any matters proposed by each director/committee

member for inclusion in the agenda.
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The agenda accompanied by detailed board papers (prepared in such form and manner as
will enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters placed before it, including
but not limited to, background or explanatory information relating to matters to be
brought before the Board and internal financial information such as quarterly management
accounts, forecasts and budgets with material variance between projections and actual
results explained) are circulated to all directors in a timely manner and at least three days

before the date of scheduled meeting.

Minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are recorded in detail regarding the matters
considered and decisions reached, including concerns raised by directors or dissenting
views expressed. Draft minutes are circulated to relevant directors/committee members
within a reasonable time after the meetings for comments and will then be approved
by the Board/Board committees at the following meeting. Minutes of Board and Board
Committees meetings are kept by the company secretary and are open for inspection at

any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.

Directors are provided in a timely manner with complete, adequate explanation and
information about the Company and its subsidiaries, its activities, performances and its
projects particularly including any significant variances from a planned course of actions to
enable them to make an informed decision or assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. In case when
the directors have queries, they are provided with the names and contact details of the
Group's senior executives for separate and independent access to them and they are able
to obtain more information than is volunteered by the management. Senior executives
are from time to time brought into formal and informal contact with the Board at Board

meetings and other events.

The Board and Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to properly
discharge their duties including access to independent professional advisers under agreed

procedures, upon reasonable request, at the expense of the Company.
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The Board held a full board meeting each quarter.

Details of the attendance of the meetings of the members of the Board during the year

under review are as follows:
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EFURAADEFALREFE RS
HEmT

2017
BOARD 2017 2017

MEETING AGM SGM
Directors —E-tF “E-tF “E-tF
= EZE83 RREFAE HIRRAE

Attendance
HERE

Executive Directors: HiTES
Foo Piau Phang iR 6/7 I l/
Qi Miao (re-designated from non-executive director B (RZE—tFAA+T—H
to executive director on September |1, 2017) FMTESRERNTES) 617 I/l 1/l
Hou Kaai Wern (resigned on March 1, 2017) FANX (RZ2—+F=H—HEHE) i - -
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES:
Song Rongrong REE 57 I l/
Wu Gang (appointed on March 2, 2018) R (RZE-NF=ZA-BEZE) - - -
Yan Keya (appointed on March 2, 2018) Bri (RZZ-/\F=A_REZI) - - -
Han Hongtu (appointed on March 2, 2018) B2E (RZ2-N\F=A-REZH) — — —
Xin Kexia (resigned on March 2, 2018) Frfk (RZZ-/\F=ZAZREHE) 5/7 11 |/
Shi Changyun (resigned on March 2, 2018) BRE (RZE-NF=AZAEH) 6/7 Il l/
Jing Tian (resigned on March 2, 2018) X (RZF \E AZB#HM) 6/7 I /1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BUKHITES:
Yang Xiongsheng R 5/7 0/l 0/l
Zhao Yuhong HFA 5/7 I o/l
Li Quan FiE 617 I/1 o/l
Duh Jia-Bin HRE 6/7 Il 1/
In addition to the above regular board meetings during the year, the members of the Board BrilENTHESee3I) ESQEE

of Directors followed the principles of good corporate governance and the best practices
of the relevant code provisions and recommendations of the Corporate Goverance Code
as set out in Appendix |4 of the Listing Rules and maintained a continuous dialogue with
shareholders, especially It is through the annual general meeting or other plenary meetings
to communicate with the shareholders. During the year under review, the chairman of the
board of directors attended the annual general meeting and invited the chairman of the
relevant committee to attend. If the chairman of the relevant committee fails to attend
the meeting, the chairman of the board invites another member or the chairman of the

committee concerned to properly appoint another member to attend.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To maximise the effectiveness of the Board and to encourage active participation and
contribution from Board members, the Board has established four Board committees,
namely the executive committee, audit committee, nomination and corporate govermance
committee and remuneration committee with specific written terms of reference that
clearly deal with their authority and duties, to oversee particular aspects of the Company's
affairs, assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities enable the Board committees
to perform their functions properly. Board committees report to the Board on their work
and findings. They adopt as far as practicable, the principles, procedures and arrangements
of the Board in relation to scheduling and conduct of meetings, notice of meetings and
inclusion of agenda items, recording and availability of minutes. The written terms of
reference of the audit committee, nomination and corporate governance committee
and remuneration committee, which are in line with the CG Code, are available on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange and will be reviewed from time to time.

The quorum necessary for transaction of business of each Board committee is two.

Executive Committee (“EC”)

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the EC comprised of all executive directors.

The EC meets as and when required to oversee the day- to-day management of the
Group and has all the general powers of the Board except those matters specifically

reserved for the Board.
The principal duties of EC include:

®  managing the business and investments by overseeing the Group's operations,
projects, assets and liabilities, budgets, compliance obligations and financial

performance in accordance with the policies and directives of the Board;

®  making recommendations to the Board as to the Group's overall policies, strategies
and financial objectives in the development of its business and ensuring their

implementation and execution; and

®  providing leadership to staff and management and nominating key personnel and

ensuring appropriate levels of authority are delegated to them.
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Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee (“NCGC”)

During the period between January |, 2017 and December 31, 2017, the NCGC is

chaired by Mr. Foo Piau Phang (the Chairman of the Board) and comprised two other

members, namely, Dr. Li Quan and Mr.Duh Jia-Bin. The NCGC meets at least once a

year. Al NCGC members, except Mr. Foo Piau Phang, are independent non-executive

directors.

The principal functions of the NCGC include:

making recommendations to the Board on all new appointments or re-
appointments of directors, the establishment of a succession plan for directors,
in particular the chairman and chief executive officer and the composition of the
Board;

identifying and nominating qualified individuals, subject to the approval of the Board,

to be additional directors or to fill vacancy in the Board as and when they arise;

reviewing on an annual basis the Board structure, size and composition and the

independent element of the Board;
developing the criteria for selection of directors;
assessing the independence of independent non- executive directors;

developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

directors and senior management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

reviewing the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.
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The chairman of the NCGC will report to the Board on its proceedings and

recommendations after each meeting.

During the year under review, two meetings were held by the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee. Details of the attendance of the nomination committee meeting

are as follows:

RENGXERZBEZIRANBRERERK
MEFCERSHERIALFELRES -

I]]]D

HNEEER  REROEEAEESRAS
REE- EFLERAEERE R NEE
W :

Directors Attendance
o HERE
Foo Piau Phang (Chairman) RS (FE) 22
Li Quan =g 212
Duh Jia-Bin KA 2/2

The main works performed by NCGC during the year ended December 31, 2017
included reviewing the structure and composition of the Board; assessing independence
of existing independent non-executive directors and putting forward recommendations to
the Board on re-election of retiring directors as well as reviewing Board Diversity Policy

and recommending the same to the Board for approval.

Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

During the period between January |, 2017 and December 31, 2017, the RC is chaired
by Ms. Zhao Yuhong (an independent non--executive director) and comprised two other
members, namely, Mr. Song Rongrong and Mr. Duh Jia- Bin. All RC members, except Mr.

Song Rongrong, are independent non-executive directors.

The RC consults the chairman and chief executive officer about its proposals relating to
the remuneration of other executive directors and has access to professional advice if

considered necessary. The principal functions of the RC include:

*  recommending to the Board on the Company's policies and structure for the

remuneration of the directors and senior management of the Group;

®  recommending to the Board the remuneration packages of all executive directors

and senior management; and

®  reviewing and approving the management's remuneration proposals with reference

to the Board's corporate goals and objectives.

The chairman of the RC will report to the Board on its proceedings and recommendations,

where appropriate, for the Board' s consideration and/or approval.
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During the year under review, three meetings were held by the remuneration committee.

Details of the attendance of the remuneration committee meeting are as follows:

REBEFER  FHZEE R
SHEFHZEE SR ‘Eﬂfﬁzéi’lﬁﬁﬂi

E

Directors Attendance
BEE HERE
Zhao Yuhong (Chairman) HF (£E) 33
Song Rongrong RERE 3/3
Duh Jia-Bin K& 33
The main works performed by RC during the year ended December 31, 2017 included FWEEenNEE—E—+F+-_A=1+—8H

reviewing and approving the employees’ annual salary increment commencing from
January 1, 2017 and recommending the proposed directors' fees paid for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

A general description of the Group’s emolument policy and long-term incentive schemes
as well as the basis of determining the emolument payable to each directors for the year

ended December 31, 2017 are disclosed on pages 28 to 29 of this annual report.

Audit Committee (“AC”)

During the period between January I, 2017 and December 31, 2017, the AC consisted
of three members, namely, Mr. Yang Xiongsheng (chairman), Ms. Zhao Yuhong and Dr. Li
Quan, all of whom are independent non-executive directors. The Board is of the opinion
that the majority of the members of the AC possess accounting and financial management

expertise or experience required to discharge their duties.

The major duties of AC include:

®  considering and recommending the appointment, re- appointment and removal of

external auditor;

®  approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor, any

questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

®  reviewing and monitoring external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the

effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable standards;
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discussing with external auditor the nature and scope of the audit and reporting

obligations before the audit commences;

developing and implementing policy on the engagement of an external auditor
to supply non-audit services and making recommendation of any measures for

improvements to be taken;

monitoring integrity of financial statements, annual and interim reports and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgment contained in them. In this regard,
in reviewing the quarterly, interim and annual financial statements and the annual

and the interim reports before submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with the Listing Rules and other legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and

(vil)  any matters that have been raised by the Company's staff responsible for the

accounting and financial reporting function or auditors;

reviewing the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management

systems,

discussing with the management the system of internal control and ensuring that
the management has discharged its duty to have an effective internal control
system including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and their training

programmes and budget;
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considering major investigations of findings on internal control matters as delegated

by the Board or on its own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

reviewing the internal audit programme, ensuring co- ordination between the
internal and external auditors, and ensuring that the internal audit function is
adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company and

reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the internal audit function;

reviewing the external auditor's management letter, any material queries raised by
the auditor to management in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts
or systems of control and management's response and ensuring that the Board will

provide a timely response to the issues raised;

reviewing the Group's financial and accounting policies and practices;

reviewing the arrangements the Group's employees can use, in confidence, to
raise concems about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters. The Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate

follow-up action; and

reporting to the Board on matters set out above and to consider other topics, as

defined by the Board.

The AC has explicit authority to investigate any matter under the scope of its duties
and the authority to obtain independent professional advice. It is given full access to and
cooperation of the management. It has been provided with reasonable resources to
discharge its duties properly. In the course of reviewing the Group's financial information,
the AC members liaise closely with the Board and the chief financial officer to gather

relevant information.
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During the year under review, 3 meetings were held by the audit committee. Details of

the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

SREBEFARITREE - BKE
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Directors Attendance
BEE HERE
Yang Xiongsheng (Chairman) Gk (F/E) 33
Zhao Yuhong HFAL 2/3
Li Quan =g 3/3
The major works performed by the AC during the year ended December 31,2017  REZE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—-HIFE &
included the review and consideration of the announcements relating to the Group's REECRITZTEIRBEENREERM
interim and annual results; interim and annual reports; significant accounting and audit AEERHLR2EEE AN PEHREER
issues arising from annual audit of the Group’s financial statements; budget, periodic L BEERAEENKRERMELAZEKR

reports from internal audit department; internal audit plan, external auditor's audit and
non-audit fees as well as the assessment and recommendation of re-appointment of

auditor for the coming year.

Full minutes of the AC are kept by the company secretary of the Company. Draft
and finalised minutes of the AC meetings are circulated to all members of the AC for
their comment and records respectively, in both cases within reasonable time after the

conclusion of the meetings.

Securities Transactions by Directors and Officers

The Company has adopted a code of conduct by Directors and Officers of the Group
on terms no less favorable than the standards set out by the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code") contained in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, save as disclosed above, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and the Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout the year ended

December 31, 2017.

The Board members have been reminded of their obligation to comply with the Model

Code.

Directors and Officers as defined in the Code who are in possession of unpublished
inside information in relation to the Company or its shares are prohibited from dealing in
shares of the Company and are also prohibited from dealing in shares during the black-out

period.

Insurance
The Group has appropriate insurance cover in place in respect of any legal actions against

its directors and officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs and results of the Company and of the
Group. Their responsibilities have also been stated in the section headed “Independent
Auditor's Report” on pages 96 to 103 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, the directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently and made accounting judgments and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable in the circumstances. With the assistance of the
Finance Department, the directors ensure that the financial statements of the Group are
prepared in accordance with statutory requirements and appropriate financial reporting

standards.

Management recognises the importance of providing the Board with appropriate and
relevant information on an accurate and timely basis. Quarterly business review and
financial reports comparing the Group's actual performance with budget and highlighting
major relevant issues are provided to the Board to enable it to make an informed
assessment on the Group's performance, position and prospects. Under the CG Code,

monthly updates are required to be provided to all directors.
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The Board endeavours to ensure a balanced, clear and understandable assessment
of the Group's position and prospects to extend to the Group's financial reporting
including annual and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as well as

information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The Company publishes its interim and annual financial results and reports in accordance

with the requirements under the Listing Rules.

External Auditor and Auditor’s Remuneration

The external auditor of the Company is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. The Audit
Committee is responsible for considering the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors. The Board has no disagreement with the Audit Committee’s

view on the re- appointment of external auditor.

The statement of Deloitte Touch Tohmatsu, the independent auditor of the Company,
regarding their reporting responsibility on the financial statements of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2017 is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 96 to 103 of this annual report. Representatives from Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu met up with the Audit Committee meeting to answer questions.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the fees paid to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
the Company's external auditor, for audit services of the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to HK$ 2.3 million (For the year ended December 31, 2016: HK$ 2.7 million).
The fee paid for non-audit related services, representing mainly taxation services,

amounted to HK$ 0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: O.1).
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Risk Management and Internal Controls
The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, and for reviewing their design, operational

adequacy and effectiveness.

The Group's risk management and internal control systems encompass their policies,

processes, tasks, and other aspects of the Group that taken together:

* facilitate their effective and efficient operation by allowing it to respond
appropriately to significant business, operational, financial, compliance and other
risks with a view to achieving business objectives. This includes the safeguarding of
assets from inappropriate use or from loss and fraud and ensuring that liabilities are

identified and managed;

®  help ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable

financial information for internal or external reporting; and

®  help ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and also with

intemal policies with respect to the conduct of business.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance of no material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than

eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective risk management and

internal controls are as follows:

® A distinct organisation structure exists with defined lines of authority and
responsibilities. Division/department heads are involved in preparing the strategic
plan which lays down the corporate strategies to be pursued in the coming year for
achieving the annual operating plan and the annual operational and financial targets.
Both the strategic plan and the annual operating plan lay down the foundation
for the preparation of the annual budget by which resources are allocated in
accordance with identified and prioritised business opportunities. The annual
operating plan is submitted for approval by the Executive Committee subject to
regular review. The strategic plan is presented to the Board by management subject

to regular review and the annual budget is approved by the Board yearly;
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® A comprehensive monthly management reporting system is in place providing
financial and operational performance indicators to the management, and the
relevant financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Variances
against budgets are analysed, and explained, and appropriate actions are taken, if

necessary, to rectify deficiencies noted; and

®  System and procedures are in place to identify, measure, manage and control risks
including legal, credit, market, operational, environmental, behavioral and system

risks that may have an impact on the Group.

The Group's Internal Audit Department (“IA") performs audit reviews of the risks and
key controls of the Group. IA plays an important role in monitoring the Group's internal
governance, evaluating the quality of the risk management and internal control systems
and informing the Board whether sound risk management and internal control systems
are maintained and operated by the management in compliance with agreed processes
and standards. To preserve the independence of the internal audit function, the Head
of IA reports directly to the AC on audit matters and to the chief executive officer on

administrative matters.

Using a risk management-based approach audit, IA plans its internal audit projects annually
in consultation with, but independent of, management. The audit methodology and
process adopted by IA include understanding and analysing the business, determining risk
areas within key processes; analysing and evaluating the process control effectiveness and
communicating results and follow up. Independent reviews of different financial, business
and functional operations and activities will be conducted with audit resources being
focused on higher risk areas. Ad-hoc reviews will also be conducted on areas of concemn

identified by the AC and the management.

The Company has established written policies and procedures on daily operations,
covering process flow, methodology adopted, reviewing process and reporting system.
Division/Department Heads will be notified of the control deficiencies noted for
rectification, and IA will follow up with the implementation of audit recommendations.
Significant internal control weaknesses are brought to the attention of the AC and if

necessary to the Board, and to the senior management for remedial actions.
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During the period under review, the Board, through the AC, has conducted reviews on
a regular basis, of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions and gave due deliberation/consideration to the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience of the accounting and financial

reporting function.

Furthermore, the whistleblowing policy has been adopted by the Board for the Group's
employees, customers and suppliers to raise concerns, in confidence, about possible

improprieties in any matters related to the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHT

Shareholders Communication

The Company strives to convey to shareholders pertinent information in a clear, detailed,
timely manner and on a regular basis and to take into consideration their views and inputs,
and address shareholders’ concerns. Their views are communicated to the Board as a

whole.

The Company communicates with its shareholders through the publication of annual and
interim reports, results announcements, other announcements and documents required
to be published pursuant to the Listing Rules, and press releases. All shareholders’
communications are also available on the Stock Exchange's website at www.hkex. com.hk

or the Company's website at www.idthk.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of AC,
NCGC and/or RC, or in their absence, members of the Board committees are generally

available to answer shareholders’ questions.

Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each substantially separate
issue, including the election of individual directors. Votes cast on each resolution at the

general meetings are properly counted and recorded.
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TREARES

At each general meeting, the shareholders will be informed the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answers will be provided if there are any questions from the
shareholders. The poll results are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the

Company's website.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING (“SGM”)

The directors of the Company, notwithstanding anything in its Bye-Laws shall, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the Company as at
the date of the deposit carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,

forthwith proceed duly to convene a SGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and addressed to the company secretary and deposited at the Company's

principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company's share registrars and upon their
confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the

Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the SGM.

If the directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the said date.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who want to put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM should submit a
written notice of those proposals with their detailed contact information to the company
secretary at the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong. The request will be
verified with the Company's share registrars and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution

in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders’ enquiries must be in writing setting out their contact information and
addressed to the company secretary and deposited at the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Block C, 9th Floor, Kaiser Estate, 41 Man Yue Street, Hunghom,

Kowloon, Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board procedures
and policies are followed and also responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised
of the relevant regulatory and corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and facilitating the induction and professional development of directors. Ms. Gao Keying,
the company secretary of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2017,
had attended relevant professional seminars to update his knowledge and skills. She had
complied with the Listing Rules and taken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional

training.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognised that effective communication to investors is the key to establish

investor confidence and attracting new investors.

Measures taken by the Group include:
®  Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all shareholders within the
prescribed period stipulated by the Stock Exchange. All results announcements and

reports are posted on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company's website.

®  The Group regularly releases corporate information such as awards received,
product launches and the latest news of the Group's developments on the
Company's website. The public are welcome to give their comments and make
their enquiries through the Company's website and the management will provide

their prompt response.

®  The constitutional documents of the Company can be found on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange and there is no change in the Company's

constitutional documents during the period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE #HEREARRE

The Group complies with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Hong Kong Stock Exchange™). During the year under review, it is committed to rising
the environmental, social and governance of the Group (“Environmental Social and
Governance") up to a higher level, and hereby to present its Environmental, Social
and Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 which is prepared in
accordance with the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide™ contained

in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

I.  SCOPE

This report focusingly reports on the performance of the Group in promoting
corporate social responsibility (“Corporate Social Responsibility”") during the
period from January |, 2017 to December 31, 2017, mainly including the disclosure
of the policies and regulations as well as the key performance indicators which are
important and closely related to the stakeholders, covering the Brands Sales and
OEM/ODM Sales business segments owned by the company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group"), and the daily operations of the Group's Hong Kong office and Shenzhen
factory.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group has established a variety of channels to allow related institutions

and individuals in the society (the'“stakeholders”), to participate in the Group's

operations so as to understand and oversee the Group's operating performance.

The group is committed to forgo a harmonious community with various co-

existing interests, promote the harmony and co-prosperity of the Group and its

stakeholders, and maximize the comprehensive benefits of the society, including

maximizing corporate profits. Stakeholders can participate in the operation of the

Company through the following means:

Stakeholders

BEA

Key targets and interests

IREEREER

Channels and means of

communication and participation
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Company measures

DREHE

Shareholders and

investors

BRREKEER

Protection of shareholders’
interest, truthfulness, accuracy
and timeliness of information

disclosure.

Shareholders’ meetings, investors'
conferences and site visits, disclosure
of information (including financial
statement) and contact information

of the Company.

BRAE REEZANEE -
BABRE(SHMBHREK) - DR
L YR

Publication of notifications and resolutions of
the shareholders’ meetings and disclosure of
information of the Company in accordance
with rules; organization of various investor
activities; publication of the Company's contact
information on the Company’s website and
reports, and assuring all communication
channels are smooth and unobstructed.
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Channels and means of

Stakeholders Key targets and interests communication and participation Company measures
BEA FRABRBER BESRLANEE DR
Employees Protection of basic rights, Workers union, communication Establishment of workers union to provide

compensation and benefits, channels between employees and workers with a platform to communicate;
work environment, development  management, opinion boxes, staff payment of salaries and benefits in full and on
and promotion and occupational  activities, training and education. time; payment of social security insurance in
health and safety. accordance with law; provision of a healthy
and safe work environment; establishment of
a fair promotion mechanism; cared about our
employees, organization of employee activities,
trainings and learning activities.
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Channels and means of

communication and participation

BESELANEE

RE #HEREARRS

Company measures

DR

Stakeholders Key targets and interests

BEA IREEREER

Customers Guarantee of the product
quality and delivery, long-term
stable co-operation.

25 ERAEALERE &M

Regular visits and maintain regular
communication. Strengthening of
quality control, assurance of steady
production and smooth logistic
process; provision of adequate
products; entering into long term

sales agreements with customers

FEED R0 HER - 1%
SEEH  RELEBTAES
B RRTEBER  BTRH
BRAFRE -

To enhance the effectiveness of communication
with customers, monthly meetings are set up
with the customer service representatives in
each country to improve customer service
standards. The Group has set up a central
customer service hotline in Hong Kong and
added the role of customer service manager
to enhance customer service performance,
including hold customer service manager
responsible for centralizing refunds to enhance
the transparency of the refund process. In
the same month, The Group has set up a
customer service center to establish face to

face customer service.

All of the Group's locations have put in use
Red-Mine, a central email system, to improve
email communication and follow-up efficiency;
moreover, customer service email system
is planned with automatic reply function for
service enhancement while this technology is
currently under study.
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RE #HEREARRE
Channels and means of
Stakeholders Key targets and interests communication and participation Company measures
BImA IRERREER BREZEDANEE DR
Government Lawful operations, payment of  Site visits, inspections, work conference  Conduction of operation in accordance with
tax in accordance with the law, and discussion, work reports, the law; compliance management, payment of
production safety, fulfillment of  submissions and approvals tax in accordance with the law; strengthening of
social responsibility. the Company's safety management; acceptance
of government supervision, inspection and
examination in accordance with regulations,
active assumption of social responsibilities.
B BAEE  [OEAB > 2 REEAR RE TEESEW AL AREE  WARK 18R
HE - BTHERME A IERE WX Bt  AREER RATEXEXBAEE
BRERRGER  RBARLERT -
Suppliers and Fair bidding, long-term stable  Public bidding meetings and business  Fair bidding, select by merit, performance
contractors cooperation and timely payment.  meetings, regular communications of contractual obligations, strengthening of
regular communications, maintenance of long-
term cooperation with quality suppliers and
contractors.
HER - ABR AYHEE REREAE HAREEH ARG BER ATHER EEEE ROEBETARE M

Community and

the public

Job opportunities, community
development, ecological

environment, compensation and

assistance.
EME HEER AR
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Co-hosting of community activities,
charity, volunteer service and co-

construction of the community
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BEARER - BELGHERMA
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BEEHY

Promotion of community building and
development, provision of volunteer service,
establishment of communication channels for
the community and the community members;
hosting of community activities, promotion of

the building of harmonious community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE

Environment

3.1.1 Emissions

The Group is actively responding to the global trend of emission reduction
and is committed to minimising release of greenhouse gases, wastewater,
solid wastes and other pollutants in its daily operations. Therefore, a series
of environmental policies have been developed to strengthen the control of

emissions, including;
Waste reduction

Most of the electronic wastes generated in the manufacturing process,
including the scrapped circuit boards, scrapped parts and malfunctioned
components, are returned or handled directly by recycling companies. At
the same time, the Group continues to seek and improve the manufacturing
process and technology in order to increase productivity and reduce

scrapped electronic products and parts during the production process.

For reduction of the waste generated, factory operation increases the
application of re-use boxes to avoid wastes generated from logistics tools

made of materials easily damaged such as paper, plastic.

The Group categorizes different kinds of wastes for proper disposal,
identifies recyclable wastes, and establishes classified bins. The Group also
arranged waste classification trainings to encourage employees to actively

participate in waste recycling.

Electronic products involve application of batteries and the Group
understands the far-reaching impact of batteries on the environment,
therefore has designated disposed battery collection locations for promoting

the appropriate handling and recycling of disposed batteries.
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In addition to disposed batteries, the Group also focuses on carton wastes.
Therefore, recycling bins have been set up to collect waste papers and

arrange recycling companies to handle.

The Group regularly evaluates the production process to find out the
sources of hazardous wastes, and defines action plans to reduce these
wastes. The Group also put labels to differentiate hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes to facilitate hazardous wastes being handled properly by

the qualified service providers.

Currently, the hazardous wastes produced by the Group include disposed
batteries, sewage sludge, oil rags and contaminated gloves; whereas non-

hazardous wastes mainly include disposed capsules and carton wastes.

The Group has demonstrated the following results in the reporting period

through the implementation of the aforesaid policies and measures for waste

RTBEEL - SETETAMEAE
B gUEROMAENEREL YR
e AT R

SETHFELERE  KEEE
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reduction:
Total Intensity per
Annual Weight  production unit
(tons) (gram/piece)
BEE
EX0A: k2901
Types of Wastes BENESR 2FEHSE () BE(R/#)
Hazardous waste BEEEY) 424 247
Non-hazardous waste EEEEY) 950 554
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Reduction of wastewater discharge

The Group's factory in Shenzhen discharges both industrial and domestic
wastewater. The factory has installed sewage treatment facilities to reduce
the pollutants in the wastewater, and has additional facility for re-use of the
treated wastewater. This approach not only reduces wastewater discharge

but also helps the Group to use less fresh water.

Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emission

The Group seeks to adopt renewable or other clean energy in replacement
of coal combustion facilities in order to reduce the generation and emission
of sulphur and nitrogen oxides. In addition, the Group actively implements

other administrative means to reduce GHG emissions, including:

— Reduction of business trips

The Group has a thorough understanding that business trips increase
energy consumption and lead to an increase in GHG emissions; therefore,
the Group actively decreases the number of business trips to reduce GHG
emissions, and switches to other effective communication methods, including
avoidance of long-distance personal meetings, replacement with telephone
and/or video conferences, as well as adoption of bundled courier to reduce

GHG emissions from additional traffics caused by separate own delivery.
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— Sourcing from local suppliers

Sourcing with non-local suppliers requires additional transportation; the
situation is similar to business trips which increases energy consumption
and GHG emissions. As long as the Group's requirements are fulfilled,
preferences are given to local suppliers. In each procurement process, the
Group will firstly consider and invite local suppliers to make quotations and
provide product information, then leverage the factors such as raw material
quality, cost and environmental protection. Non-local procurement will be

considered only when the local suppliers fail to meet the relevant conditions.

— Environmental education

The Group understands the long-term impact of the electronics industry
on the environment, therefore plays an active role in the supply chain
to promote the importance of emission reduction and establishes
environmental management measures for suppliers to follow, including: for all
vehicles that enter the Group's premises, they must be kept idle, the engines
are not allowed to be running and emitting exhaust within the factory's
premises; the exhaust emissions need to comply with the environmental
requirements; all persons within the factory's premises shall abide by the
requirements such as waste classification, no littering and no smoking. In
addition, the Group requires chemical suppliers and transporters to ensure
that chemicals are protected against leakage before arrival and the packaging,
containers and labels of chemicals must comply with the relevant regulatory
requirements; and the supply of materials, semi-finished products and
finished products shall not contain any intentional or unintentional addition

of flammable and explosive substances.
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The Group also incorporates the concept of environmental protection
into employee’s annual training program to enhance their environmental
awareness.Environmental training topics include RoHS, SO 14001
environmental awareness, waste classification, chemical safety and so on.
For key positions such as manufacturing and cleaning, trainings are provided
to new employees of each month to ensure that they can classify and
identify hazardous and non-hazardous wastes as well as arrange the qualified

recycling companies for handling.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have any violation of
environmental legislations. The sources and emission volumes of GHG are as

follows:

BERENHFRR

GHG Emission Sources
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E& o BRIBIIREBFEROHS
ISOI40I IR REH BEWH
B ERLrSE tHRERE
REBREL - ERATAMARY
BITRAEI - BRMEIER
BHATERYEEZEREY 1
RHAERNEINERE -

EREHE SRIAEMERR
BEDIMEREE - mmEBAM
EERRERIERIRE KB E I
T

GHG
Emission Volumes
(kg carbon

dioxide equivalent)

Total consumption BRERE

volumes ERE(DFT
BMEE _—SILmEE)

Diesel oil consumption from stationary
sources (litres) EE RN MFEE (RT)

Diesel oil consumption from mobile

sources (litres) MEREV SRS
Gasoline consumption from mobile

sources (litres) MENRE TR E
Natural gas consumption (cubic meters) RARFEE (L HK)
Power consumption of facilities (kWh) R EE (FIA)
Total GHG emissions BERBNINES
Production volume (piece) HEE(H)

GHG Emission Intensity

BEREHNEE

350 921

240 641
33,427 75991
85212 186,792
5,152,310 4,336,280
4,600,625

1,716,021

2.68

(kg carbon dioxide equivalent/piece)

(Bfr=

ALIREE/ )
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3.1.2 Use of Resources 312 BRER

66

The Group understands that the resources on the planet are limited,
therefore appropriate measures are implemented to enhance the efficiency

of resources used, including:
Energy saving

In order to reduce energy consumption, the Group uses energy-efficient
products and equipment as much as possible, and actively plans to replace
equipment with high energy consumption, such as gradually replacing the
factory's traditional electric lights with LED lights. There were 1,000 pieces of
LED lights replaced in 2017, which have saved up 300,000 kWh compared
with that in 2016. The air conditioning system uses a central control to
effectively manage the temperature of each department and automatic
shutdown is scheduled at a specified time to reduce additional energy
consumption caused by uncontrolled temperature adjustments. In addition,
employee’s code of conduct for energy saving was established and requires
employees to turn off electrical devices in office and production when off
work, in order to ensure all machinery are shut down when out of working
hours. It aims to develop employee a habit of shutting down machinery

when leaving workplace.

Water conservation

In addition to re-use of the treated wastewater, the Group has adopted
multiple administrative measures to enhance water consumption efficiency.
In the daily operation, wastewater is collected and used for non-production
purposes, such as toilet flushing or floor cleaning. Water equipment in the
production workshops and offices are inspected and repaired timely for any
leakage to avoid water wastage. Also, water conservation slogans are posted
on bulletin boards to enhance employees awareness of water conservation,
and remind employees and visitors of water saving. During meetings, bottled
water is replaced by reusable water containers to change the unfavourable

employees’ habit of using bottled water at meetings.
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The Group's production site in Shenzhen has demonstrated the following
achievements in the reporting period through the implementation of the

aforesaid policies and measures for water conservation:

Sources/types of water used

RKER/FHE

Re-use of treated production wastewater

TRIRME A R IR (& 6 A RE K

Wastewater used for flushing toilets and cleaning floors
BEZK R e R 3R

Bottled water replaced by reusable water container in meeting

RESE2YS Wik
Saving of office resources

Electronic documentation is promoted in the daily operation; hardcopies are
replaced by electronic files in computer and whenever possible paperless
office operation is implemented to reduce the use of paper consumables.
The Group set targets on amounts of paper to be used as well as
expectations to all departments on paper saving. Employees are required to
print on both sides of the paper. When copying or printing files, paper with
only one side used should be collected for re-use for saving of new papers.
Average weights of cartons and plasticised papers being reused are 2.5 tons

per month, increased by 0.75 ton compared with that in last year.

RE #HEREARRS

BREEFEORKER  £8
HR I E R R & B EE
AT AR

Volume of water saved
HEAKE

20 cubic meters per month
015K/ A

3-5 cubic meters per month
357K/ A

|0 bottles per meeting
0K,/ &

LNy -y
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RE #HEREARRE

313

During the reporting period, the main resources consumed by the Group

during operation are summarized as follows:

Annual consumption (tons)

EREHA - KEEEFEREMA
RNSBIRERMIMT :

Intensity per production unit

2548 (H) BEEEANERERE

Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen

Resources &R 54 3| 54 #IN

Electricity (KWh) EN(FRE) 408,620 4,743,690 0238 2764

Water (cubic meters) K(ZFK) 123 183,868 0 0.107
Packaging materials (paper) BEIE (M) NA NA

(piece) (CMEEE) NEA 15,955,961 TEA 9.298
Packaging materials (plastic) BEWH (BT NA NA

(piece) (CAMEFE) TEA 5,243,556 TEA 3.056

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group understands the environmental concems from both community
and customers, and promote policy on green manufacturing and green

procurement policy:
Green procurement policy

When compliance with the Group's operating and pricing requirements,
preference is given to suppliers who are competent to provide
environmentally friendly products and/or services, including environmentally
certified materials or services (such as RoHS and REACH compliant
materials), use of products made of natural materials, products free of toxic
and hazardous substances, and other products/devices compliant with the
relevant environmental regulations. The Group is actively promoting the
proportion of environmental suppliers (the proportion of suppliers providing
environmentally friendly materials to the total suppliers), with the goal that

the materials provided by suppliers are 100% RoHS compliant.
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Green manufacturing policy

Since the Group's business is the manufacturing of electronic products,
the main environmental impacts are electronic waste generation and
resource consumption during the production process. Therefore, the green
manufacturing policy is implemented along with the green procurement
policy to provide customers with environmental compliant products,
including compliance with the local environmental laws in the importing
countries, such as RoHS, REACH.

The Group is committed to the use of energy-efficient and water-efficient
equipment in the manufacturing process. Resource recycling process is
established to collect the reusable packaging materials for proper handling,
in order to reduce waste generation and wastage of various production
resources. A sewage treatment plant was set up to process wastewater
for compliance with the environmental standards, and then the treated
wastewater is recycled to be used for production or other purposes. This
not only reduces wastewater discharge but also decreases the total water

consumption.

The Group has defined day-to-day management measures to reduce and
control the emissions of hazardous wastes. Annual environmental trainings
are provided to employees to enhance their environmental awareness and

to implement environmental management measures.

In addition, the Group regularly monitors the significant environmental
impacts to ensure compliance with local regulations of where the Group's
businesses locate. Regular environmental audits are conducted to identify
nonconformities timely, and implement the appropriate corrective and

preventive actions.

RE #HEREARRS
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32

Society 32 #E
3.2.1 Employment 321
In addition to complying with local employment regulations, the Group has
also formulated a series of employment policies to ensure that employees

are treated in a fair and reasonable manner.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group recruits employees through the company’s website, email,
advertisements, etc., and gives equal opportunity to every job applicant. The
Group shall not reject any applicant because of gender, age, race, and other
physical conditions. Employment decisions are solely based on fulfilment of
the job requirements, and shall not discriminate against physically disabled
applicants. Besides local applicants, applicants of other ethnicities and
nationalities are also considered at the time of recruitment, including ethnic

minorities and expatriates.

Regarding the mechanism for employee's promotion, the Group only refers
to the employee’s performance, experience and competence, and does not
consider other irrelevant attributes such as marital status, physical condition

and gender, etc.
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Wages and Benefits

The Group signs a contract of employment with its employees in accordance
with local laws to ensure employees’ legal rights in the employment
relationship, including the payment of legal minimum wage, and employees’
entitlement to paid holidays, vacation, sick leave and leave for work-
related injury. In addition to the purchase of social insurance for employees
according to local employment regulations, the Group also purchases
commercial insurance beyond the local regulations in order to reduce
employee’s cost of seeking for medical services. In case of work-related
injuries and accidents, the Group will arrange reasonable compensation for

its employees and their families in accordance with laws.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover or receive any

violations or complaints regarding discrimination or recruitment.

As of 31 December, 2017, the total number and distribution of employees

within the Group are as follows:

RE #HEREARRS

FEE T

SEREBEWOENEETHRE
ERa#H  REEIEERBHEL
HAE R - BRERKETAN
ﬁH'EIW%EE FH AR
REBENIBRE - RTRE
mﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁalﬁﬁﬁA%M
ERETREAMNZRAINESR
Rig - BREE T A BRREHMN
Ko B THEAREING - KE
Emiﬂélﬁﬁﬁéiﬁé@%

o

T

ERERN - KFERARARKI
BRRBARARENBREFAR
EEE

BZE217F12R318  £ERH
BTRERHHERMT :

U]]D

Number of Employees

ETAR

Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender 5l E Y|
Male Bl 28 333
Female g3 20 66|

Hong Kong Shenzhen
Job type THEER E Y|
Full-time 28 48 994
Part-time B 2 -

Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age BEISHR BB ]l
18-30 18-30 6 314
31-45 31-45 26 596
46 - 60 46 - 60 18 84
> 60 > 60 — -
Total By 50 994
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Average Monthly Employee Turnover Rate (%)

SATYRERKE (%)

Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender BTHA BB ]l
Male Bl 7.14 258
Female o 7.58 224

Hong Kong Shenzhen
Age BIFR E Y|
18-30 18 -30 125 4.03
31 -45 31 -45 7.05 1.92
46 - 60 46 - 60 6.02 208
> 60 > 60 — —
Total average BYig= 733 238

322 REEZZ

3.2.2 Health and Safety

The Group is committed to achieving the goal of zero work accidents
through different measures to prevent the occurrence of occupational

diseases and work-related injuries and fatalities.

Workplace Safety Management

The Group conducts annual safety monitoring to identify potential safety
hazards, and implement corrective and preventive actions in a timely manner.
The Group installed protective devices for the production equipment and
machinery in the workplace to ensure that employees are not exposed to
dangerous parts. The compliance of the workplace is monitored, including
the provision of adequate fire equipment and regular safety inspection. In
addition, suppliers are requested to follow safety practice within the Group's
premises. All vehicles within the premises must be limited to the speed of
10 km/hour with no honking is allowed. Their driving routes shall follow the

instructions from the security team.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREEMER AT

SEFNERTTEEIMER
AR EEE 88 TR¥R
ETRBUMEL -

THEGHZZEEE

SEETFERE2EATIE Kl
Z2BE  REHTUHLLERR
e BHIESMOEERERE
& TRMHERE  BRETRE
TEEROED - ERETHESAN
BRMR - BREEERANIERS
M UEHETLRERE - o
EREERERERENETLS
B LEARRNERH —ZRA
BOKIOREUAN  BEBRRE
N TR BREINREHAE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employee Safety Training

The Group provides personal protective equipment to employees where
necessary, and arranges appropriate occupational health and safety trainings,
including the proper usage of protective equipment, awareness of safety risks
in the work place, content in the material safety data sheet (MSDS) and the
use, storage and emergency response to leakage of chemicals. The Group
also arranges fire and emergency drills regularly to train employees on the

evacuation routes at dangerous situations.

Work and Life Balance

The Group shall not force employees to work overtime, and regularly
organizes recreational activities, psychological counselling and trainings to
help employees relax from the working pressure, including psychological
health seminars, family days, tug-of-wars, Kara-OK and explores various
sport activities amongst employees, such as the establishment of sport
teams like basketball teams, football teams, table tennis teams. The Group
also arranges book clubs in which books are recommended and insights are

shared by participants.

In addition, the Group is very concemed about how employees view the
company, therefore employee communication channels and suggestion
boxes have been set up. The suggestions collected from the employees are
followed up on a regular basis. Employee representatives are selected from
each department with the Group and they shall meet regularly for discussion

and sharing.
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HERERRE

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any violations
against the local occupational health and safety regulations. Within the
reporting period, no work-related fatality and lost day due to work-related

injury was found.

Development and Training

The Group established a comprehensive training system. Apart from the
general classroom trainings, the Group emphasises on-the-job exercises and
a mentor is assigned to every new employee. Through this apprenticeship
programme, the mentor gives the hands-on guidance and supervises the
new employee in accomplishing his/her work, this approaches enhances the
training efficiency and the new employee’s performance. Adjustments could
be made to the apprenticeship program according to the new employee's
competence and experience. At the same time, based on the Group's
strategies for product and business development, career development plan
is formulated for employees to support the sustainable development of the

Group's business.

During the reporting period, the monthly average proportions of employees
who have received training within the Group and the monthly average

number of trained hours received by each employee are as follows:

323

EREHE - SEREERERRE
BEMBRERERZE2MEANE
Bl - EREHN  REEREER
TEBEMET - RAREEIEM
BRA RS -

BRERAEI

RERYTENEIER  RT—
REVRZZFISN - RERB TR
B BRUEEIAEUNET
ATEGE I T A RS R E R EE
MEIEK I BIOEIIHRER
B TEEM o [EDHHRE ISE3IR A
BB T T RN RERKFE
HBIERE - [FIR H Mm%
EBRRERR  HETHIERESE
B8 REBREEBOFER
R o

EREHRE  SERPEIEIIE
BRNBAD L EEBEEENTHE
BT

Monthly Average Proportion of Monthly Average Number of

trained employees (%)

Trained Hours per employee

BEXIEINESN BEEENEA
BATYEDL (%) FEN R ONE)
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Gender 14 5 54 FI 54 w3
Male Ex] 4.17 2397 054 0.54
Female pegid 038 3123 00! 062
Hong Kong Shenzhen Hong Kong Shenzhen
Employee level EE&R N Y N YN
Senior management BRERE 3.70 4.17 0.3 071
Middle management PRERE 316 20.75 044 055
Junior employee NR/RET 0 2592 0 042
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3.24 Labour Standards 324 #TXEE

The Group strictly prohibits the employment of child labour and will only
employ employees aged 18 or above. The Group follows the principle
of voluntary overtime to ensure that employees are willing to work and
employee's personal freedom is protected. The Group is committed not
to force employees to work overtime nor to work in any form of forced

labour, including not using any bonded labours such as prison workers.

For effective prevention of child labour, the applicant’s identity document
shall be carefully examined at the time of recruitment to confirm the age of
the applicant, and the application from an applicant less than 18 years of age
shall be excluded. In addition, the Group's personnel management system
set up an alert function to signal any applicant under the age of 18. With
this double gate-keeping mechanism, the risk of misusing child labour could
be avoided. Under the daily management, child labour will be terminated

immediately when he/she is discovered within the Group.

The Group has also set up measures to prevent forced labour. Employees
are required to submit working hours to their immediate supervisors. HR
shall review employees” working hours, investigate immediately and stop the

relevant work assignment in case of involuntarily overtime identified.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any employment
of child labour nor any violation against the laws and regulations related to

forced labour.
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3.2.5 Supply Chain Management

The Group has developed supplier management policy for communication
to the suppliers the expectations of the Group and the requirements that
they need to abide by. The policy covers quality, environmental management,
health and safety, social responsibility, and anti-terrorism management, etc.
and these aspects are also the criteria for supplier selection. The Group has
established a supplier selection and evaluation procedure, which conducted
an initial review of new suppliers and an annual evaluation of key suppliers in
the form of on-site audits or questionnaires. The contents of the evaluation
include product quality, delivery time, environment, use of environmental
friendly materials, and management of hazardous substances. After the
evaluation, results shall be recorded as the monitoring evidence for the

subsequent long-term partnership.

Based on the aforesaid evaluation scope, procurement preference will be
given to local suppliers over their non-local counterparts who demonstrated
the same performance level from evaluation. Non-local suppliers shall be
considered only when no qualified local supplier available, currently local
suppliers account for about 96%. As of 31 December 2017, the geographical

distribution of the Group's suppliers is as follows:

325 RE#EE
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Number of suppliers

Geographical locations B HERYE
China H 189
Hong Kong Bk 84
USA % ;
Korea F#E |
Japan AR |
Other it 2
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3.2.6 Product Responsibility 326 EmEf

All products of the Group are subject to strict quality inspection/testing
before shipping out of the factory, including the sampling and monitoring
of hazardous substances in incoming materials such as 201 [/65/EU the
management procedure for the Restriction of the Use of Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic Products, in-process quality control,

and safety verification of the final products.

For product promotion and selling, the Group shall ensure the product
information provided to the customer is true and accurate to avoid any
misleading at the time of purchase. The Group also has designated customer
service personnel responsible for responding customer inquiries and initiating

product recall when necessary.

The Group has formulated a complaint handling mechanism to analyse with
Quality Department on the complaint received from customer, and shall
report the results of analysis and follow-up actions to the customer within

the specified time frame.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any customer
complaint or violation against regulations related to product responsibility;
and no item among all products sold was recalled due to product safety and

health reasons.
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Quality Assurance Process

The Group starts the quality control of products at the source. Material
from supplier is verified for the quality acceptable before production,
alternatively the supplier is requested to provide an acceptable verification
report for raw materials. At the manufacturing process, production lines are
inspected and semi-finished products are sampled for verification to assure
the process meets the specified technical requirements. Final verification shall
be executed by Quality Department at the end of production; only finished

products which pass the verification could be delivered and sold.

Upon identification of abnormal products through either external or internal
findings, the Group shall discuss amongst the relevant departments about
the need for identification, segregation and recall of the abnormal products
when necessary. Whenever product recall is necessary, the Group shall
collect the relevant batches of products from the customer, and implement

the procedure of nonconforming products for analysis and disposal.

Product Recall/Return Procedure

The Group has established product recall/return channel that allow
customers to report the product defects through phone or email. Internal
staff in the Group shall then evaluate the decision on product return upon
receipt of customer's report. Whenever product return is deemed necessary,
the Marketing Department shall inform the customer to retum the relevant
product. Warehouse shall record and track the returned products, and notify
the Quality Department to conduct cause analysis in order to identify the

solutions and the subsequent preventive measures.
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Intellectual Property Protection

All products sold by the Group are newly designed by own brand. For
assurance of own brand's intellectual property, product design is sampled
and checked regularly for the ownership of the brand. Products will be
arranged to put off the shelf immediately upon any infringement of property

right is found.

The Group shall only adopt the product output from its own design centre,
and the design centre shall not plagiarize the design of other institutions. In
the employment contracts for employees in design centre, plagiarism is not
allowed and they committed that all their designs belong to company's assets
and they shall be held responsible for the confidentiality of their own design

products.

Up to now the Group has 5 product patents registered in the United States,
and 8 product patents registered in PRC. For management of information
security, the Group established KMS system through which information
of the Group's own design and product specifications from customer is

encrypted to prevent data leakage.

The Group promises not to purchase any pirated office software, and such
software shall only be purchased from suppliers who have the appropriate
copyright; In addition, the IT Department shall conduct internal audits to
monitor any download of pirated software by employees. When employees
discovered using pirated software, he/she shall be instructed to delete the
pirated software immediately and be issued a warning letter for prevention

of recurrence.
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Privacy Protection of Consumer Information

The Group has developed a policy for protection of consumer information
and privacy. Consumer information will not be used for publicity or
promotion without consumer’s permission. At the operation stage where
consumer information is processed by the Group's subcontractor, the Group
shall enter into a confidentiality agreement with the subcontractor and
request the subcontractor to have a robust information security management

system for preventing leakage and theft of customer information.

3.2.7 Anti-Corruption

The Group has established corporate governance policies in accordance with
the Code of Corporate Goverance from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
Also, the Group has formulated a policy of anti-corruption and prohibited
company directors, managers, employees and other representatives from

giving or accepting bribes.

Interal Audit of Corporate Governance

The Group has established an Audit Committee which is responsible to
develop internal audit control procedures and annual audit plans for the
Group. This Committee conducts audits in an ongoing and systematic
manner in accordance with the annual audit plan and the additional
task announcement from the top management. Audit report is regularly
communicated with the management and disclosed to the Audit Committee.
Corrective actions and subsequent follow-ups shall be implemented in

accordance with the time frame specified in the audit report.

Moreover, the Group hired an independent third party to conduct audit
on the Group's financial accounts. It aims to assure the company's accounts
are clear and accurate for enhancement of internal financial control and

supervision so that the interests of shareholders are protected.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Anti-Corruption Awareness Training

The Group announces its internal code of integrity at least once a year
with an emphasis on the awareness of corporate integrity; this includes the
principle that the Group never owes compensation, benefits and bonuses
to its employees and never owes payments to its suppliers. Also, additional
effort is paid to strengthen the awareness of anti-corruption to key
departments and positions. The Group communicates anti-corruption and
integrity through hotline, website and posters, and establishes investigation
channel for employees to report suspected fraud or corruption and other

illegal incidents such as extortion and money laundering.
Whistle-blowing Procedure

The Group has a whistle-blowing mechanism and communication channel
for employees, customers and suppliers to freely report any on fraud,
corruption and other illegal incidents. The reporting person is allowed
to send a written message to the mailbox of Internal Audit Department
in confidential and anonymous manner. Upon receipt, the Internal Audit
Department shall conduct investigation with other relevant departments
such as human resources, legal, logistics and career development, and then

return the investigation results to the reporting person.

Anti-Corruption Measures

In addition, the Group has established anti-corruption measures for various
aspects, including the declaration of personal interests by new employee
when report duty; also, directors are required to declare according to the
law their own interests including those in the competition business; regarding
procurement, evaluation from at least three suppliers is required to obtain
fair and reliable quotes for making procurement decision; for approval of
service contracts, different levels of personnel are authorized corresponding

to different levels of contract amount in order to ensure adequate review.

During the reporting period, the Group did not discover any legal cases or

complaints related to corruption.
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328 Community Investment

Each year the Group has actively liaison with community groups of similar
concept in corporate responsibility to seek for suggestions, and defines the
number of cooperation plans with community groups as the performance
indicator in this aspect. Reasons will be explored for the cooperation
plans that could not be concluded in the year. The Group has designated
department responsible for collecting suggestions from community groups
and responding within the prescribed time frame. The suggestions collected
will be reviewed for translating into performance indicators for future
evaluations. The performance of the channel for collecting these suggestions
will be assessed, improved, and reported to the community and relevant

stakeholders as needed on annual basis.

The Group has been involved in a variety of community activities, support
for environmental protection and education. These include cleaning of roads
and marine wastes, education support of poor and left-behind children, and

fundraising to support education of children in rural areas.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of IDT International Limited (the “Company") are pleased
to present to the shareholders their annual report and audited financial statements of the

Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group") during the year ended December 31, 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries are
engaged in investment holdings, design, development, manufacturing, marketing and
distribution of lifestyle electronic products. Details of the principal activities of the Group

are set out in note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in note 6 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 104

and further analysis is given in the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended December 31, 2017 (for the year ended
December 31, 2016 nil).

The Directors have resolved not to recommend the payment of a final dividend for the

year ended December 31, 2017 (for the year ended December 31, 2016: nil).
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 183 to |84

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year ended

December 31, 2017 are set out in note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 107, and the financial

information of the Company on page |82, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At December 31, 2017, the Company did not have reserves available for distribution as

calculated in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group spent an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$24.8 million (for the year ended December 31, 2016: HK$7.5
million) on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment for the purpose of business

expansion.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are

set out in note |3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREEMER AT

SEHEHRE
AEBEBERAVBEE EEREELEE
BEHNE I3BEEE 1848 ©

TN
ARARBE_T—tF+A=+—HLHF
BRAz ZEFEHNRE M BmRMEE 23
1 o
e

AEBRARARAFENREBH 2 ZBFED
HERFIVEZGAREEHRNE 1828
ZAREMBTEERA o

AR K
R_F—tF+-A=1+—H0 REAREZX
BRESGIHEARR B E A H D IR ©

M BERRE
AEEREE_T—tF+A=T—HLF
ﬁﬁ%%%%%a%% BBERZBELEE
HOBBUBEL(BE_S—R"F+=A
=t+—BILFE : BEISEET)

AEBRAFERANE  “BERRELETF
BENRE M BRRMEE 1318 -



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the aggregate percentage of purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers in the year accounted for approximately
27.4% of the Group's purchases and the purchases attributable to the largest supplier

accounted for approximately 12.2% of the Group's purchases.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the aggregate percentage of turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was approximately 30.7% of the Group's
turnover and the percentage of turnover attributable to the Group's largest customer was

approximately 16.8% of the Group's tumnover.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders, who to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital, had any interest in any of

the five largest customers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended December 31, 2017 are:

Executive directors:

Foo Piau Phang (Chairman)

Qi Miao (re-designated from Non-executive Director to
Executive Director on March 2, 2018)

Hou Kaai Wem (resigned on March 1, 2017)

Non-Executive directors:

Song Rongrong

Wu Gang (appointed on March 2, 2018)
Yan Keya (appointed on March 2, 2018)
Han Hongtu (appointed on March 2, 2018)
Xin Kexia (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Jing Tian (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Shi Changyun (resigned on March 2, 2018)

Independent Non-Executive directors:

Yang Xiongsheng
Zhao Yuhong

Li Quan

Duh Jia-Bin
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In accordance with Bye-Law 89 of the Company's Bye- Laws, any Director appointed
as an additional Director or to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election but
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation at such meeting. On March 2, 2018, Mr. Wu Gang, Mr.
Yan Keya and Mr. Han Hongtu were appointed as non-executive Directors. They are
eligible and, will offer themselves for re-election at the next annual general meeting of the

Company.

In accordance with Bye-Law 97 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. QiMiao, Mr. Yang
Xiaonsheng, Dr. Li Quan will retire from office by rotation as Directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence from each of the
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). The Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors as

independent.

DIRECTORS BIOGRAPHY

Biographical details of the existing Directors are set out on pages 14 to 9 of this Annual

Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years which can be terminated by either party
giving a three month's written notice to the other party. Under such service contract,
each of the independent non- executive directors is subject to retirement by rotation
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company's Bye-
Laws, and is entitled to a fee of HK$200,000 per annum subject to such adjustments as
the Board of the Company considers appropriate and the approval of the shareholders
at annual general meeting of the Company. Remuneration shall be paid to a director for

appointment as a member of a particular committee.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group

within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended December
31,2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during

the year ended December 31, 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

None of the directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their associates had,
as at December 31, 2017, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under the provisions of the SFO) or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The effective share option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by
the Company on August 29, 2012. During the period under review, no share was granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the 2012 Share Option Scheme. As at December 31,

2017, there was no outstanding share option of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

No share options were granted to or exercised by the Directors during year ended

December 31, 2017 and there is no outstanding balance at December 31, 2017.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended December 31, 2017 was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
their respective spouse or children under the age of |8 to acquire benefits by means of

the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2017, the following persons (other than the Directors or the chief

executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under

section 336 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company:

TERR

RoT—tF+-A=+—R BEARES
SATHBRIN - THATHART 2 BH R4
BRG® - BAALAREESROEENE
N6 HATEEZERBHESSANERA
A2 AT

% of the issued

No. of share capital
shares held HERTRA
Name &8 FiRAEE BAk

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd (note /) THLEREHRN BB AT
(st 1) 1,310,896,765 (L) 50.42%

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology (Hong Kong) I#ZEE SRR (FR) R

Co. Limited (note 2) BRAR(HFE2) 1,310,896,765 (L) 5042%
Hongtu High Technology Int' I Inc. Hongtu High Technology Int' I Inc. 1,310,896,765 (L) 50.42%
Chan Pau Shiu Yeng Shirley (note 3) BRES L (M5t 3) 130,412,067 (L) 5.02%
Raymond Chan (note 3) BRIES (5t 3) 130,412,067 (L) 5.02%

Notes:

(M

Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd. holds 100% of the equity interests of Jiangsu
Hongtu High Technology (Hong Kong) Co. Limited (“Hongtu (HK)"). Therefore, it is deemed
to be interested in the interest in the shares of the Company held by Hongtu (HK) through

its subsidiary (see note 2 below).

Hongtu (HK) holds 100% of the issued share of Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc. (“Hongtu
(Seychelles)"). Therefore, Hongtu (HK) is deemed to be interested in the 1,310,896,765
shares of the Company beneficially owned by Hongtu (Seychelles) by virtue of its
shareholding of Hongtu (Seychelles).

Mrs. Chan Pau Shiu Yeng, Shirley (“Mrs. Chan") is the wife of Dr. Raymond Chan (“Dr.
Chan"). She is therefore deemed to be interested in the 130,412,067 shares of the Company
held by Dr. Chan.

The letter "L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the shares.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any person (other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as at December 31, 2017 which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
OnJune 9,2017, BXFERE 5 (L) BFR7AR] (Oregon Scientific Enterprise (Shanghai)
Limited®) (“Oregon Shanghai"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as

the consignor entered into:

(i) the product consignment agreement and the related supplemental agreement with
FEHIGHREFR OBR AT (Beijing Funtalk Communication
Chain Snuyang Procurement Centre Ltd*) (“Funtalk”), a company established in
the PRC and controlled by =MI&EE AR AR (Sanpower Group Co., Ltd.*)

("Sanpower Group"), a conglomerate established in the PRC, as consignee in

I REEE R

respect of the consignment of the products of Oregon Shanghai, such as consumer
electronic products developed and manufactured by Oregon Shanghai (“Products™)
through the sales and marketing network of Funtalk in the PRC during the period
from 9 June 2017 to 31 December 2019;

(i) the supplemental agreement of the product procurement agreement and the
product procurement (consignment) agreement dated 20 April 2017 with 78l
=ZIEEEHLIMT AR AR (High Tech Sanpower Co. Ltd.*) (“HISAP"), a company
established in the PRC and controlled by Sanpower Group, as consignee in respect
of the consignment of the Products through the sales and marketing network of
HISAP in the PRC during the period from 20 April 2017 to 3| December 2019;

and
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(il

the supplemental agreement of the non-exclusive marketplace services agreement
dated 20 April 2017 with FBEEEHHBR AT (Shanghai Meici Trading
Limited®) (“Meici"), a company established in the PRC and controlled by Sanpower
Group, as consignee in respect of the consignment of the Products through the
sales and marketing network of Meici in the PRC during the period from 20 April
2017 to 31 December 2019.

As at the date of the consignment agreements (as supplemented and amended
by the supplemental agreements) (“Consignment Agreements”), as )T &k7x Bl =
RERM AR AR (angsu Hongtu High Technology Co., Ltd¥), a controlling
shareholder of the Company, is accounted for and consolidated in the audited
consolidated accounts of Sanpower Group, Sanpower Group is a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Each of HISAP, Meici
and Funtalk is controlled by Sanpower Group, and thus each of HISAP, Meici
and Funtalk is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Consignment Agreements constitute continuing connected

transactions of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the terms and conditions of the Consignment Agreements can be
referred to the Company's announcement issued and published on the website of

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on June 9, 2017.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the aggregate commission amount

paid to consignee amounted to approximately HK$59 1,000.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights

at December 31, 2017.

There was no issue or exercise of any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar

rights of the Company during the year ended December 31, 2017.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the Group's remuneration policy are set out in the section of “Management

Discussion and Analysis” from pages 28 to 29 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEREE

ERES  BRE  IRESIECERN
ARAR-B—LF+ A=+ —BEEEM
AT 2 I BHRES  BRE  BRESS
BIUER -
HE_Z—+E+-A=+—-HILLFE XA
A A A EIREE 5 - BE - RBEE R
BRI RITIHITEE

HMEE

REBZHEMARFRENTFRE2LEL
B[ EREwmE oM & -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#k

93



94

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEREE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors (the "Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions”). This is on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules, and has been updated from time to time.

Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and the Code of

Conduct for Securities Transactions throughout the year ended December 31, 2017.

The board members have been reminded of their obligation to comply with the Model
Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 30 to 53 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2017, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-Laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float throughout the year ended December 31, 2017 as required under
the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company's Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by

him as a Director.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors' and officers’ liability insurance coverage

for the Directors and officers of the Group throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board

Foo Piau Phang Qi Miao

Executive Director (Chairman) — Executive Director (Chief Executive Officer)

March 22,2018
Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 2B S

Deloitte.

TO THE MEMBERS OF IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IDT International Limited &
BEIFRBRAF] (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the
Group") set out on pages 104 to 182, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2017, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAS")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEN RS

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HRESER BMNESMAHERE S RETRE
Impairment of goodwill
B A

We identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit matter due
to i) the significant management judgements and assumptions involved
in the discounted future cash flow calculation which was used for
considering the impairment of goodwill, and ii) the significance of the
goodwill of HK$33.8 million recognised in the consolidated financial
statements of the group.

RMREAERERERETSFE  DEN)RIRARAS
AT ER SR T BEIEE A KRR - ARREEEER
B ki BERESAMBRRTRAREEH3BEETH
B2k

Goodwill has been allocated to the respective cash-generating units.
Impairment of goodwill should be assessed by the management of the
Group through comparing the recoverable amount of cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated with the carrying
amount of that cash-generating unit at the end of the reporting
period. Significant judgement and assumptions were required by the
management of the Group in assessing the impairment recoverable
the amounts of cash- generating units. The recoverable amounts are
determined with reference to the value in use of the relevant cash-
generating units, which required significant assumptions about suitable
discount rates, annual growth rates and expected gross margin in
order to calculate the present value of the estimated future cash
flows.

HECENEERBEIREN - HERERR S5EERE
BBLBEENEREAREMMNANE S E L REHRZE
REMMRAEETHE - EREEREENFEARELNR
B MO S EEZREAAERER - E2EABEIREMN
EREEETAIRESHE SERMMRE FRRXLEY
EMRELHBARR Ut B AKRERENRE -

Our procedures in relation to the management's evaluation of

impairment assessment of goodwill included:

RMABEERHERERENREFEE

®  Obtaining the value in use calculations prepared by the

management.

. DEEREENGERMEENE -

®  Assessing, evaluating and challenging the reasonableness of the
key assumptions made by the management, including annual
growth rates, discount rates and gross profit margin based on
our knowledge of the business and industry.

o RERMEXBLIENTE % HEREREE
BELNIZRIANAEN  BREFERK  HEX
REFE

®  Testing the accuracy and evaluating the relevance of key inputs
used in the cash flow forecasts against historical performance,
including revenues, cost of sales and operating expenses, and
in comparison to the future strategic plans of the Group in
respect of each cash- generating unit.

o AFHBAERBENRSREBEAMRANEEIZERA
B ERNE - BFRE  HERAREEMY - 18R
EREEASEIREMAARRRAE T SEITHR -

o Reviewing the sensitivity analysis performed by the
management on the growth rates and discount rates to
evaluate the extent of impact on the value in use.

s RIEEBHERXRFIBRMETHREEIMN - AU
AHEHEREEFENIEE -
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Key audit matter

HRESER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANFSNMAHBREZRETEE

Valuation of inventories

FEGE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit matter due
to (i) the significance of the inventories of HK$130.4 million (net
of allowance for inventories of HK$31.3 million) recognised in the
consolidated financial statements, and (i) management judgement is
required in making an assessment of the adequacy of the impairment
provision for those inventories obsolete or/and slow-moving identified
as no longer suitable for use in production nor saleable in the market
as a result of change in the market conditions and technology.

RMREFEHEBBRETER - DAR()NFRAMBRE
FHERAFEEB 30488 (KNRFEREEE3I3EE
L) MERN  R()EEBNFE%ERTIZIR R MEY
mABEEBREENMTAIRTS LHEMERESRES,

FFHNFERERENT R AL HE -

As disclosed in the note 5 to the consolidated financial statement, the
management of the Group reviews the aging of the inventories at the
end of the reporting period and estimates the net realisable value of
obsolete and slow-moving inventories items based on their conditions
and usefulness.

REAMBRRMES - AEENERENREHARE
WEZERIRBEERRENEE  RERERFHEES
BFE-

T g
]

Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventories included:

RMBEAFERENEFER

*  Obtaining an understanding of how inventory provision is

estimated by the management;

s  THEREMHEFERAENLN

o Understanding and testing the entity's key control in relation
to the identification of aged and obsolete inventories and
preparation of aging analysis of inventories;

s TEMAREBMNEZENBRFENRRREERED
MABNERT 22

®  Testing the aging analysis of the inventories, on a sample basis,

to the source documents;

o B FERED ARG

o Discussing with the management and evaluating their
assessment on the estimation of the net realisable value of
items of inventory for those inventories obsolete or/and slow-
moving without/with little utilisation or movement during the

year or subsequent to the end of the reporting period; and

. BEREN® AT EREENFANSRERREZEE
/ﬁ PFIRRED R BE R, RBHFENFEER
HORBBFEIELROfEET &

®  Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of the net
realisable value of items of inventory with reference to the
selling price movements and usefulness of items of inventory,

subsequent usage and aging analysis of each individual part of

inventories.

« SEFWERMHEEREDRARMN  FEEDH%
BREREROMETEFEERGATERFENE
B o
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Key audit matter

HRESER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANFSNMAHBREZRETEE

Valuation of trade receivables

WSR2 14 E

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to the use of judgment and estimates in assessing the

recoverability of trade receivables.
HFIRE AERR < HEBREREN T8 - AR
OB A A UK (2 B P A R SR MR

R

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, the management
considers the credit history including default or delay in payments,
settlement records, subsequent settlements and aging analysis of the
trade receivables.

RETRKRTHOBER  EEEeEBRIEREERS
BRBRLTEHNT - EECE - HREERIRE T -

At December 31, 2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables is
HK$117.1 million (net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$23.1
million).

RZF—tF+-A=1—F  BRERREEREE17.
BET (KMRREREER2BIBET) °

Details of the trade receivables are set out in note |9 to the

consolidated financial statements.

ARABUERR O FEHN RS MISmRMT9 -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of trade receivables
included:

RMEBRKERGENRFEE

®  Obtaining an understanding of how allowance for doubtful
debts is estimated by the management and testing the key
controls of the Group relating to the preparation of the aging
analysis of trade receivables.

o THREEBMAMGIRERGELIA B
W B K O i e 0 A 7 R RO E AR

SEYRERE

o Reviewing the aging analysis of the trade receivables
throughout the year to understand the settlement patterns by
the customers.

o REEFREKES

REBRIRDMTA T R PR EREER -

®  Testing the aging analysis of the trade receivables, on a sample

basis, to the source documents.

o ERAIRUMRTIRE D MARIG T

®  Assessing the reasonableness of recoverability of trade
receivables with reference to the credit history including
default or delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent

settlements and aging analysis of each individual customer.

o ZEXEFRFPHMEELE (BRERITEHNZ - &

Btk HRBERREON) - AFHERUERT K
migE 2z A -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include

the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other

information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T

Hin&s
AREFHRHEMENRR - KL &R EHE
W%KE%WW%%’1T@T@ ABRE

RBEFOGZBRE -

BB EAMBRENERLIREEME
Al ZATAEZEE O EREREAF A

EEE®

ARMBEAMBRROFT  RANERE

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ Eit@iET - ZREME
REMBRRARMERT AR THEN
ERFEEAEBREUT FEERGRRL
MR - ERBMERITHTHE - MRFAFIR
REMEAFEEAERRL - BRAFERS
ZFE-EEHE  RIIRBEMRS

Hm

ESRAEERGAMBRRARRENEL

ERRIEZEAERBEBQHMASEAN
(BARBRELEIDREB(RAGIDNEE
ERBEEEMPANGERBERE  UHE
RRRBEEEVBREROBENFEHRRGE
SRR BB EA SRR AT R R
BE-

EREEAMBRRE  EZRENE B&
ERER LN YHEERBRL TRE RS
BREFBMNFR ULERKELER
i BROFESAENR ESEERAE
2 R EAMERNERTR

BB REBE o

REERRBREE B%



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

U Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of interal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

B 2B RS
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concem basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor's report is
Wong Shun Yu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 22, 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REREkEtEZERER

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

NOTES 2017 2016
Pt £ —E-tF —TRE
HK$'M HK$M
EEEER BEAET
(restated)
(g&51)
Revenue 23 6 516.6 565.0
Cost of goods sold HERKAR (409.5) (466.0)
Gross profit e 107.1 99.0
Other income HA WA 7 5.1 9.3
Other gains and losses Hithfris REE 7 (13.1) 6.0
Research and development costs MR LFAEER (41.6) (30.5)
Distribution and selling expenses DiHRHER X (75.5) (77.4)
General administrative expenses —RIIBRE (67.5) (68.4)
Finance costs AMEKAK 0.2) —
Loss before taxation BREAI AR 8 (85.7) (62.0)
Taxation HiIA || = (2.0
Loss for the year AEEEE (85.7) (64.0)
Other comprehensive (expense) income: Hith 28 (A ) s -
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to REA e BMHEE
profit or loss: Ra Rt EE
Exchange differences arising on translation of HMEBINEBEENEL ZH
foreign operations (4.0) 1.9
Total comprehensive expenses for the year AEFRARXAE (89.7) (62.1)
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year A T S IBEIGEAFEFHE K
attributable to: PERXEE
— Owners of the Company . VNGIE DN (89.7) (62.1)
— Non-controlling interests — RS = =
(89.7) (62.1)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic - .\ 12 (3.30) HK cents  (2.46) HK cents

(3.30) B HEAL

(2.46) AL

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

BREBEARAE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

At December 31,2017
RZB—+E+ZA=+—H

NOTES 2017 2016
Pt % —E—-tF —TRE
HK$'M HK$'™M
BEEET BEEET
(restated)
(fE5)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment E R LY E 13 325 209
Intangible assets B EE 4 3.3 3.7
Goodwil B 15 338 338
Rental deposits Meke 6.7 5.6
Prepaid rental BRES 1.6 27
Available-for-sale investments A HERE 16 — 0.9
77.9 67.6
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =8 18 130.4 1022
Trade and other receivables 0 B R B Lt B WK TE 19 162.5 163.5
Tax recoverable QL EER 0.1 05
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRESR 20 37.2 80.7
330.2 346.9
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

At December 31,2017
RZE—tF+=A=1+—H

NOTES 2017 2016
Pt £ —E-tF —TRE
HK$'M HK$'™M
BEEET BEEET
(restated)
(fg&E5)
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables FEA BR 50 S B JE A 3008 21 192.9 145.1
Borrowing & 22 35.5 —
228.4 145.1
Net current assets RBEERE 101.8 2018
Net assets EERE 179.7 2694
Capital and reserves BRAR#E
Share capital R A< 23 260.0 260.0
Reserves f# (80.4) 9.3
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ AQREE AELER 179.6 269.3
Non-controlling interests FERER 0.1 0.1
Total equity ERAR 179.7 2694

The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to |82 were approved and authorised EIMBEEE INE Y EANKRBREER -F

for issue by the Board of Directors on March 22, 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: —N\EZA-t+-_RREEEeHEREER
7 TR TIATRERE -

FOO PIAU PHANG QI MIAO FIERE i
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR *E EBE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREREHR

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LSNGI} UG
Non-
Share Share Other  Translation Accumulated Sub- controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve osses Total interests Total
RRBE FERIR
BA - RiEE  HibkE s RiEE it 5 a5t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$™M HK$M HK$™M HK$™M
AURET B¥EET AWAET B¥EEL A¥AEL B¥BEL AKAER B¥BEL
(Note)
i3
At January 1, 2016 RZZ—RE-A—H 2600 1650 325 (948) (313) 3314 0.l 3315
Exchange differences arising on REBINEBEE ERZR
translation of foreign operations - — - 1.9 — 19 - 19
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - (64.0) (640) (64.0)
Total comprehensive income FEE2ENE (F%) 838
(expenses) for the year — — - 19 (64.0) (62.1) - (62.1)
At December 31,2016 RZZE-R"FTZA=+-H 2600 1650 305 (929) (953) 2693 0l 2694
Exchange differences arising on BERMEBELE EXZS
translation of foreign operations — — — (40) — (40) — (40)
Loss for the year TEEER — — = = (85.7) (85.7) = (85.7)
Total comprehensive expenses for ~ AFE2HEF Y L%
the year - - - (40) (857) (89.7) - (89.7)
At December 31,2017 RZZE—tF+-A=+-H 2600 1650 35 (969) (181.0) 1796 0l 179.7
Note: MieE -
In 2012, the Group acquired the additional interests of its subsidiary and the amount represented RZF—ZF AREREHNE A FANEINME
the difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests were adjusted and the fair & R FERER AR RECNKEAY
value of the consideration paid. B2 REZERE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended December 31,2017

HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$'M HK$M
BEEER BEBEBT
(restated)
(fg&E5)
Cash flows from operating activities REFHEEZRENE
Loss before taxation BREiAI 2 B8 (85.7) (62.0)
Adjustments for: TR
Interest income FMEKA (0.4) (03)
Finance costs RMERKA 0.2 =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE  BERRBINE 12.7 153
Allowance for doubtful debts RERR 9.2 —
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE 2 0.7 1.9
Amortisation of prepaid rental BNHEE 2 #H Il [l
Impairment of available-for-sale investment AR ERE 2 RE 0.9 —
Loss (gain) on disposals of property, HEWSE  BERFEZ
plant and equipment BE () 0.4 (8.0)
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEHUA R (3.3) (25.1)
Exchange (gain) loss B X (Yezs) B8 4.1) 1.0
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital ZEE S E R LEHERE (68.3) (76.1)
Increase in rental deposit MeReEM (1.1) —
(Increase) decrease in inventories FEGEMR D (24.9) 633
Increase in trade and other receivables R LB 0 e LAt B L SR S (82) (339)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables T BR TR S Bt B (S RSB I ORA) 47.8 (41.4)
Decrease in forward contracts BEE KR D — 0.1
Cash used in operations ReRBmARSE (54.7) (88.0)
Tax refund (paid) RB(2AT) 0.4 (1.5)
Net cash used in operating activities RETBMAREEE (54.3) (89.5)

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-E-tE+A=-ALEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$'M HK$'M
BYEET AERET
(restated)
(fg&E5)
Investing activities REE
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME BB REE
plant and equipment S sE 0.1 83
Interest received EWFIE 04 03
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  HEREE (24.8) (75)
Payment for patents and trademarks ENRER 2R 0.3) 0.3)
Net cash (used in) from investing activities REZB(FMR)AEREFE (24.6) 08
Financing activities BEEE)
Proceeds from borrowing ERAE5IE 35.5 =
Interest paid REREAE) (0.2) —
Net cash from financing activities BMEGEMAREFE 35.3 =
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BekERREER D FE (43.6) (88.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FONRERERREER 80.7 169.4
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes INEFE R BB E 0.1 —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, FRZASREFREER
representing cash and bank balances ARERBITHEER 372 80.7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. The shares of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate

Information section to the annual report.

The immediate holding company of the Company is Hongtu High Technology Int'
Inc. ("Hongtu Seychelles”) which holds 50.42% of the entire issued shares of the
Company. In the opinion of directors of the Company, Sanpower Group Co., Ltd.
is the ultimate controlling shareholder of Jiangsu Hongtu High Technology Co,, Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Hongtu") which is the parent company of Hongtu Seychelles. The shares
of Jiangsu Hongtu are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock code: 600122).

The Company acts as an investment holding company while its subsidiaries are
engaged in the design, development, manufacture, sales and marketing of various

consumer electronic products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars which is

the same as the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Taking into account the Group's operating performance and business prospects,
internal resources, financial support from Sanpower Group Co,, Ltd. the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group expects to have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations in the next twelve months from the
date of this consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the directors consider
that the Group will be in a position to continue as a going concern and have

prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T

—RER
AREATDRBREEAMA L BEHREE
ROF HRODEBREBARIAAR
AR FT ) B e ADBIRMHE
BEREBEXRME 2 IR F R A
BHAKE -

Hongtu High Technology Int'l Inc.
([Hongtu (Seychelles)]) A R &2 B
BEEBRRALFAMERAAR2E
BEHTBMN042% ARAEERR
“HRERERAGARIGLZER MK
BirBERAB(NIFEE ] (RHongtu
(Seychelles) BJ R A 8] ) 2 B AR AR AR R
IHZENRNR EEEFRHMED
(BRADHR + 600122) °

ARRD—RREERAA - ZHEBL
RIZEBRB AR HE  BE
EREESBETHEEM °

HEMBRRARDR ZNEERER

EX 7k

GEMBBRRZGREE

RERAKENZERAREHAZ
AEHEREADTNRRERKR =
SEARRANMBIR  ARAEES
R BRAREARANEEEER
HEZRNES RRRABAGRMH
RRAMERR 2EANRBEEE - H
I BEERRAKERRNEEUFE
RERERS VORFELEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In the current year, the directors of the Company changed the classification
of certain line items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial position and the
consolidated statement of cash flows to better reflect the financial information of
the Group's activities. Prior year figures have been represented to align with the

current year presentation. The reclassification has had no net effect on the results

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

GEMBBRZBREEE)

RAEE  ARREFEEHARER
HtzmRaER  SeBBRAR kS
ARERERNETHEANDE  UE
HiRRAREERHOMBERN - £F
BFEBIINNGEAFRENZINT
BN RHAEBBE_T—tFR-

of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The effect of changes in presentation for the preceding year by line items presented

T-RFt-A=t-HLEFENEE
BMETFAZTE

I—FERHTA S UGS RERE

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, MEERNE  CARBRRERES
the consolidated statement of financial position and the consolidated statement of B4ReRANZEENSEMNT
cash flows are as follows:
Original stated  Adjustments Restated
REZ5 HE ]
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BREBET ARKBEET ABY%AEET
Consolidated statement of profit or loss and meBnkEMEERER
other comprehensive income:
Other income Hn A 12.0 Q.7) 9.3
General administrative expenses —RITHF X ) 27 (684)
N/ATNEF —  NATER
Consolidated statement of financial position: FEMBMRE
Trade and other receivables R W B I LA R MR TE 171.8 (8.3) 1635
Rental deposits Heke — 5.6 56
Prepaid rental BAEE — 27 2.7
N/ATNE A —  NATER
Consolidated statement of cash flows: MERERER
Increase in trade and other receivables JFE W0 B 0 I L B M R IR S (32.8) (1) (339)
Amortisation of prepaid rental BERNHE#H — Il Il
Decrease in inventories BERD .2 521 63.3
Reversal of allowance for inventories FEEFER 25.1 (502) (25.1)
Exchange loss iR EE 29 (19) 1.0
N/ATE M —  NATER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

B RS R AR M &

For the year ended December 31,2017

Bz

3.

“EFF A=t BLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time in the

current year.

Amendments to Hong Kong Disclosure Initiative
Accounting Standard(“HKAS") 7

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in the current year.
The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial assets

were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i) changes
from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;

(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative (continued)

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is
provided in note 27. Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments,
the Group has not disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 27, the application of these amendments has

had no impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31, 2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE
FAIRBEIERUBREEN(E
BUBRERR D 2EAE)
AEERHEMZEBUBREEDNE
X (%)

BEBETERE R ETRENE
(&)

ZERE MO RBRER 2 HRERN
MiE27 - BETZBREXET A%
BRARE LF 2L RER - BT
VHBINBEI  BRZEETHAE
BNGARBERRYBELETNIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

3.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have

been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC)-Int 22

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration!

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

Classification and Measurement of Share-

based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensatior’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 3.

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle!
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

IFRSs Standards 2015-2017 Cycle’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January I, 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January |, 202|

e MR R

For the year ended December 31, 2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE
FAIRBEIERUBREEN(E
BUBRERER ) 2EAE)
EEMEERERHTREBITZE
BERERERER(E)

BRMBRE KEZHEABERF
EREI0RKR HEELPEZH
BREHER HEELHERTE
E28 2185

BERGHER REELIREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

B RS R AR M &

For the year ended December 31,2017

Bz

3.

“EFF A=t BLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and impairment

requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

J all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"). All other
financial assets are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive

income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

c in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management policies as
at December 31, 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate the following
potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Debt instruments classified as loan and receivables carried at amortised cost as
disclosed in note 19: these are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets will continue to be

subsequently measured at amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9;

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be measured on the

same bases as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31, 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

Br B SRR MY EE

For the year ended December 31,2017

Bz

3.

“EFF A=t BLEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)
Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets
measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment

provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the expected
credit loss model were to be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount of
impairment loss to be recognised by the Group as at January |, 2018 would be
slightly increased as compared to the accumulated amount recognised under HKAS
39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision on trade and other
receivables. Such further impairment recognised under expected credit loss model

would increase the opening accumulated losses at January |, 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 6 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease
arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS |7 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes

effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of whether an
identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where
a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases

by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, operating lease payments are currently presented as
operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be

presented as financing and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31, 2017
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For the year ended December 31,2017
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3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS |7, and continues to require a lessor to classify a

lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS [6.

As at December 31, 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$42.3 million as disclosed in note 28. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value

or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental deposits paid of
HK$6.7 million as rights under leases to which HKAS |7 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments
relating to the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts
of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are
considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits

paid would be included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in changes in

measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

Other than disclosed above, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material

impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set

out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS |7
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36

Impairment of assets.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised
into Level I, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

J Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I,

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

J Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the

investee; and
J has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a

deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other members of

the Group.

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on

consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's
cash- generating units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for intemal management purposes and not larger

than an operating segment.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or groups of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to that unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or

groups of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal
(or any of the cash-generating unit within group of cash-generating units in which

the Group monitors goodwill).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course of business, net

of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life

of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T

IREHBERA

HE(E

EENEREZAIREUKEIREMN
ARlegFINERRBREM
BREReEREMETRENR - 5
RBEHRARBEL 2HEBMS M
BORBEZEARENRRERHE

AETTRERR - BRIREM AT RD
SRONEREE  REBBEELED
ECAHIRUEM D BE 2% B 8 8 1 iR
HiE AERZEBM(REREML A
Bl ) A EL 4t % R T M L 1 ARk BB A
thEENREE -

HERBAREMLR  BE2RESH
SERAEREHE(FASEEEREN
BIRENL 2 BRI ERBIREA) 25
HEEP o

WA

BANBERBBREFHEERIER
FRBREZAFE MRFTHRHE
THENTETE -

WAEBACRERA G E - KKK
EMNSRAERALAEE  MAKEE
BEHHNE TN 2 EERART
IARERR

[}

JiN|

MBI AR EDREE - 2RAKE

] &)
AeeBRERCERNEHE - BER
MEDEMEENBHAAFHAMGE

ARG zARAERe NG BREZEE
MR REFE2FIE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated

depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lease. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased

asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under operating
leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern

in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which

economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss in the year which

they are incurred.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the year in which

it is incurred.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is calculated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life of the relevant patents

and trademarks.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment loss on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its
tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order

to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash- generating units for

which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating

unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro- rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets

of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment loss on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash- generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme and state-managed retirement benefits scheme are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid as and when employees rendered the services. Al
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS

requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and

salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred

tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit
differs from “loss before taxation” as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises

from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary difference associated
with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they

are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the

reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group entity becomes

a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instruments, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for

short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at

cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting.
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e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the

financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

*  breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-

organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets are
assessed for impairment on a collective basis even if they were assessed not to
be impaired individually. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of trade
receivables could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period
granted, observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate

with default on trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss
recognised is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets that are carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the

group entities are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T

TESHBKRE
¢MIA(E
tHEERRATIER

BERETEHRBATANRE
ARZHENAR  UReRAGE KA
TAZEZENBAEMAGBARATE -

BATA

BATADRKRAKRERNAMBRRE
BRZBEETHERNSBESNEFNAR o
SEERRTZBRATANREUAE
RBMBRERBTHALE

B Flzn

ERFEENGEeMABBHERAK
ARBERBRENMEXH 25
ERFNEDROSHAR Kb B &RE
eMR(BEAAEXNRBBENREE
RAKRZBA - XHHAREM G E K
i kERa G BRFRAREHHE
(HEB)ERTREREFEZINE -

MB X RE RN R E R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and borrowing are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and any
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

FESHBRAE)
SMIAE
SRBERRATIAE
BEHER B BEE

SREERERNERRE LN
RASE0) ToB e SR I Sk iR
HAEHE -

FIERER

AEEEEREEURAEREZAN
BRI S tepiEEs WEE
FHEREERERE BRI N ER K
EIRBES—EBR - THRIERASH
BE -

RNELEREBEER  ZHEAERE
B BERNRERREREREMZE
WAk RN ERT 2 Rt gk
BRZAHFENZEGERNADHER -

AEBESEARTIRE  SH%E
Wi FLERSBAE  FLERZ
cRAEENEREECNRENREZ
R Z RN B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#k

137



138

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

Br B SRR MY EE

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which

they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation

reserve (attributable to non- controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note
4, the management of the Company are required to make various estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experiences, and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and key sources of
estimation uncertainties at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The
recoverable amount are determined with reference to the value in use of the
relevant cash-generating units, which required significant assumptions about suitable
discount rates, annual growth rates and expected gross profit margin in order to
calculate the present value of the estimated future cash flows. Where there is a
downward revision of estimated cash flows or when the actual cash flows are less
than expected, there will be a change of recoverable amount, a material impairment
loss may arise. At December 31, 2017, the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$33.8
million (as at December 31, 2016: HK$33.8 million). Details of the recoverable

amount calculation are disclosed in note 15.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-F—tF-ASt-ALEE

A FRIEEENTERR
AN 4R AR E G BRE - X
"ET%?E!EJ'/,MWA%%EEMX/WJ EH

B RER - y@mﬁ&m%wﬂ
ERELEH R AREET i -
B GRS R -

fEt RRBRR R SEEE R
i @5 HAET B R B AT ERER
MHIRE - BB R ARER - ik
BRI ERRRICRRIAE - QTR
{EHL & 7T M) B R R B AR o

ATRABRENIRHRRERAMR

REFRIEEENEANZIBRE -
RSN —EHRERAEARRT

PREERBERAEFIECHE

AR ETRE

m1\ﬁﬁﬁ SR
28 o A e € FEER
BE HEEZM
- FEBREREHE
CARTERE B RE S
HAEERECHERRAT
RemORES Ak
CREEEAEARME R
“RA=t—-H ®BBzE
HEABYEDBIAELR-_ZE—X &
TZA=+—R:B%338FET) A
WPl e B E 7 E BRI I5HRE -

i

il
® =
<F
Z o
=l B
=
]EI

=

S

¢ D> =t

Fﬁﬂm}ﬁ”
my
Niil
8
<k
N
N
EEEI

B & S 2 =

i =

RS A S

EE>PHU}AHEHJ\5
A NS
@ﬁ—*‘fﬁgﬁ
ﬁmﬂ%‘p%

| |

M

’_\_
ke
+

]:\_Hli
%
?‘HH

ANNUAL REPORT 2017 F#k

139



140

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the aging of the inventories at the end of
the reporting period and estimates the net realisable value of obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items. Estimation of net realisable value of the inventory involves
judgment on the conditions and usefulness of items of inventories. Where the
expectation on the net realisable value is lower than the cost for certain items, a
write-off or write-down of inventories may arise. As at December 31, 2017, the
carrying amount of inventories is HK$130.4 million (net of allowance of HK$31.3
million) (as at December 31, 2016: HK$102.2 million (net of allowance of HK$60.7

million)).

Estimated allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of trade receivables. Allowance is applied to trade receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. In determining whether an allowance for doubtful debts is required,
the Group takes into consideration of the credit history of the trade receivables
including default or delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of trade receivables. Where the expectation of the recoverability
of trade receivables is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of trade receivables and allowance for doubtful debts
in the period in which such estimate has changed. As at December 31, 2017, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$ | 7.1 million (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$23.| million) (as at December 31, 2016: HK$106.6 million
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$13.6 million)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for goods sold by the
Group to outside customers, net of discounts and sales related taxes. Revenue
represents mainly Oregon Scientific branded sales (“Branded Sales”) and Original
Equipment Manufacturer and Original Design Manufacturer sales (“OEM/ODM
Sales™).

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on
the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors and chief executive officer, being the chief
operating decision maker (the “CODM"), in order to allocate resources to the
segments and to assess their performance. In previous years, the Group operates
in six operating and reportable segments, namely sports, fitness and healthcare,
smart learning products, time and weather, telecommunication, wellness and beauty
as well as energy and other electronic products. During the year, the CODM
has determined to change the structure of the internal organisation to enhance
efficiency and effectiveness on the performance review and resources allocation

and in a manner that revises the composition of its operating segments to:

Smart leaming and immersive - design, development, manufacture,

technology and sales and marketing of smart learning

and immersive;

Connected home and - design, development, manufacture,

communications and sales and marketing of home connected

and communications products;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRNE

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE_ T tF+_A=t—BLFE

6.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHWEMHE)
Health and wellness - design, development, manufacture, EERRERE — &t A% 2E
and sales and marketing of health and PR BHE R e BRI
wellness products; PRI E m
Others - design, development, manufacture, Hith et R BE
and sales and marketing of energy MR SHE R B REIR
and other electronic products. HEFER
The corresponding information for the prior year has been restated. BEFENEEREEESES -
Segment revenue and results AR EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by operating and AEBREERABRED B Wam FE
reportable segments: B ZZDT
Smart learning, Connected
and immersive home and Health
technology  communications and wellness Others Total
20
REE BHERE RERRR At aE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
ANEERL A¥EEnT REWEEn RWEEn  E%EAER
Year ended December 31,2017 BE-2—t%
TZA=t-HL%EE
Segment revenue DEE
Branded sales g E 820 1063 144 9.1 2018
OEM/ODM sales RixfasE/
R RIEHE — 1208 637 1203 3048
Total segment revenue DENE R 82.0 227.1 78.1 1294 516.6
Segment loss PEER (1.5) (23.6) (7.6) (159) (486)
Unallocated income REDRZWA 1.9
Unallocated expense FENEEZFR (388)
Finance costs BEKA (02)
Loss before taxation BBAIEE (857)
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e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DHWEMHE)
Segment revenue and results (continued) PBRERER(E
Smart learning, Connected
and immersive home and Health
technology communications and wellness Others Total
20
REE BERE RERRR Hitr am
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BYEEER BY¥EER BY%EER B%EER  B%EER
Year ended December 31,2016 HE-2-RE
TZA=t-HLEE
Segment revenue DEE
Branded sales (restated) migHE (KE5) 402 1329 215 150 2096
OEM/ODM sales (restated) RRBRE/ R
REHE (KE))) — 868 1609 107.7 3554
Total segment revenue (restated) PEREBE (F=5)) 402 2197 1824 1227 5650
Segment profit (loss) (restated) AEbas (B
(& =5) 19 (156) (165) (139) (44.1)
Unallocated income (restated) REAEZHA
L) 56
Unallocated expense (restated) AEARZFX
(&E750) (235)
Loss before taxation BRHAIEE (620)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

Br B SRR MY EE

For the year ended December 31,2017

Bz

6.

“EFF A=t BLEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external

customers. There were no inter-segment sales for both years.

Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss) profit earned by each segment
without allocation of interest income, rental income, government grant, insurance
compensation, unallocated expense such as central administrative cost, and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the Group's CODM, for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment.

No segment assets and segment liabilities are presented as such amounts are
not reviewed by the Group's CODM for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment or otherwise regularly provided to the Group's CODM.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEERE)
Other segment information Hittn &R
Smart learning, Connected
and immersive home and Health
technology communications and wellness Others Total
20
REE BERE RERRR Hft am
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BYEEER BY¥EER BY%EER B%EER  B%EER
Year ended December 31,2017 HE-2-%
TZA=t-HLEE
Amounts included in the measure of A BB MK BB A
segment profit or loss: THI5E -
Depreciation and amortisation REREH
— property, plant and equipment 0% WEREE 57 45 1.0 1.5 12.7
~ intangible assets -BVEE — — — 0.7 0.7
Reversal of write-down of inventories 15 &R ] 2.1 1.2 — — 33
Loss on disposals of property, LEME BB RRE
plant and equipment pd i 04 — — — 04
Year ended December 31,2016 BEZZ-1~E
TZA=t-HILEE
Amounts included in the measure of 2 EBEFISKEBAT A
segment profit or loss: TR -
Depreciation and amortisation & R
— property, plant and 0% KER
equipment (restated) HfE (EE5)) 2| 84 20 28 53
~ intangble assets (restated) -BVEE (KE5) 02 08 0l 08 19
Reversal of write-down of FEMAAR (£E7))
inventories (restated) 25 6.1 85 80 251
Gain on disposals of property, LEME Kk
plant and equipment (restated) R les (KE5) (15) G0 (08) (06) (80)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group's operations are located in Asia Pacific, Europe and Americas
(representing the United States of America and Latin America). The Group carries
out its manufacturing and trading operations in Hong Kong and other parts of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The Group also operates marketing offices
in Europe, the United States of America, Latin America and other Asia Pacific

countries.

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is presented

based on the location of customers are detailed below:

PEER(E)
EE R

REBZEBURTAR - BUNREMN
(EXERETEN) - AEEREFER
PEARAMB(HE]) A EE
THERETERRY - AEETER
M- EB - ATEMNREMTARER
REMGHEERFE

AEBRENAEPZRENRERP
P Eln - FEWT

2017 2016
—g-tF  “TAF
HK$'M HK$'M

EEEET BEAET

Americas EM 108.8 217.1
Europe B 261.9 2253
Asia Pacific DAR 145.9 [22.6

516.6 565.0

Over 95% non-current assets and financial instruments of the Group are

substantially located in the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding year contributing over 10% of the

total sales of the Group are as follows:

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

PWERE)
TERXFEN
REEFERASERRB 0% BHE
BIRPZBEHMT
Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Bz Bz
“E-tF —TRF
+=ZA=+-B +=ZA=+—H
HFE L5
HK$'M HK$'M

REEER BEEET

Customer “A”"!

Customer "B

BEEA
EFB

17% n/a
n/a} 16%

Revenue from OEM/ODM sales in connected home and communications segment.

Z Revenue from OEM/ODM sales in health and wellness segment.

} The corresponding amount is less than 10% of the total sales for the respective years.

REBRFXEDBRRIERE/RR
ATEUEHE R INE -

L RARERRESBRRELE R
BB S -

’ HESBEINBBFEEAHERD
10% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

7.

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HtlgA - H B RER
2017 2016
—E-tF “TREF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BERET
(restated)
(E51)
Other income Hitslt A
Interest income F A 0.4 03
Rental income HeBA 0.9 03
Sales of scraps FERIHE 3.2 37
Government grant RIGHR = l.
Insurance compensation R EEE — 0.7
Others Hit 0.6 32
5.1 9.3
Other gains and losses HittfiBRER
Allowance for doubtful debts REE B 9.2) —
(Loss) gain on disposals of property, HEME - BB RREBBE) s
plant and equipment (0.4) 8.0
Net exchange loss X BERE (2.6) (2.0)
Impairment of available-for-sale investments A ERE 2 RE 0.9 —
(13.1) 60
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBWRME

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. KREABE
2017 2016
—E-tF —T-RF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BERET
(restated)
(E51)
Loss before taxation has been arrived at BRERIEEE MR (GEA) TFIRIE -
after charging (crediting):
Directors’ emolument (note 9) e EAGET)) I.1 4.1
Retirement benefits scheme contributions Hith B TIRIMRE 5 B3
for other staff 12.0 [6.1
Salaries and other benefits for other staff HMB Tz TEREAMBH 172.6 1832
Other staff costs HwETHA 184.6 199.3
Total staff costs BIXRALR 185.8 2034
Less: Amount capitalised to inventories B BMOREERNEHE (61.1) (72.0)
124.7 1314
Amortisation of intangible assets BT EEEH 0.7 1.9
Auditors” remuneration BER e 2.3 2.7
Cost of inventories recognised as expense ERRART 2 FERAK 409.5 466.0
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMRRE (33) (25.1)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BERRBINE 12.7 153
Less: Amount capitalised to inventories B BMOREERHNERE 0.8 0.5)
1.9 14.8
Allowance for doubtful debts REE B 9.2 =
Operating lease rentals in respect of mERNHES
— office equipment and motor vehicles —-PRERERAE 0.1 0.1
— rented premises —HEME 228 240
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

B RS R AR M &

For the year ended December 31,2017

Bz

9.

“EFF A=t BLEFE

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS 9. EERIETHAEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of I (2016: 12) directors and the chief ERSERTIIB(ZE—RF:1248)
executives of the Company were as follows: EERIETHABEAZHMEHOT -
Retirement
benefits
scheme
Salaries and  contributions
Fees allowances RIKER Total
e  HERER sHEER an
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AREEL  EWESRT  B%EER  EWEER
Year ended December 31,2017 BE-E—t%
top=t-ALEE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Foo Piau Phang (note /) RHEEREME 1) — — — -
Mr. Qi Miao (note 2) WEREE(H7E2) — — — -
Mr. Hou Kaai Wem (note 3) &I (A5t 3) — — - —
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Xin Kexia (note 6) FRREE(HiE6) — — — —
Mr. Song Rongrong REREE — — — —
Mr. Shi Changyun (note 6) HREXE(Hits) — — — —
Mr. Jing Tian (note 4) FIRFEE (Mt 4) — — — —
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTEE -
Mr. Yang Xiongsheng BB EE 0.3 — — 0.3
Ms. Zhao Yuhong HFAZT 0.3 = = 0.3
Dr. Li Quan £k 0.3 — — 0.3
Mr. Duh Jia-Bin HRBEE 0.2 — — 0.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9. EBRIETHAEME(E)
Retirement
benefits
scheme
Salaries and  contributions
Fees allowances R Total
we  HekEh EIE e Lk
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BREET  BMEET  BEEET  EREAR
Year ended December 31,2016 HE-E-~%
+=Azt-ALER
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Foo Piau Phang (note /) L E(HE ) - - - -
Mr. Hou Kaai Wern (note 3) w5 3) - 30 - 30
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Xin Kexia (note 6) FRREE(HE6) — — — -
Mr. Song Rongrong REREE — — — —
Mr. Shi Changyun (note 6) HREXE(Hit6) — — — —
Mr. Qi Miao (note 2) BIRTE (7t 2) — - - -
Mr. Jing Tian (note 4) RIREE(H3E4) — — — —
Ms. Wang Yang (hote 5) THrt (Bi#5) — — — —
Independent non-executive directors:  BUHHTEE :
Mr. Yang Xiongsheng BB E 03 — — 03
Ms. Zhao Yuhong HFATL 0.3 — — 03
Dr. Li Quan FREL 03 — — 03
Mr. Duh Jia-Bin HRERE 02 — — 02
[.1 30 — 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWRME

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

9.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Note |1 Mr. Foo Piau Phang resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company on

September | I, 2017.

Note 22 Mr. Qi Miao was re-designated from non-executive director to executive director
of the Company and was appointed as the chief executive officer of the Company

on September |1, 2017.

Note 3:  Mr. Hou Kaai Wern resigned as a director of the Company on March [, 2017.

Note 4 Mr. Jing Tian was appointed as the non-executive director of the Company on
December 6, 2016 and resigned as the non-executive director of the Company

on March 2, 2018.

Note 5:  Ms. Wang Yang resigned as the non-executive director of the Company on
December 6, 201 6.

Note 6: Mr. Xin Kexia and Mr. Shi Changyun resigned as the non-executive director of the
Company on March 2, 2018.

Note 72 Mr. Wu Gang, Mr. Yan Keya and Mr. Han Hongtu were appointed as the non-

executive director of the Company on March 2, 2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services

in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent non-executive

directors shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.

In 2017, no director is included in the aggregate emoluments of the five highest
paid individuals. In 2016, the aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid

individual included one director of the Company.

The emoluments of the remaining five (2016: four) highest paid individuals are as

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE- T tF+-A=+—-BLEFE
LEREHHES
R-ZE—+F HEEFHALEES
FHEEMSRE -N_T—R"¥F 4
EREFMEEFMAERE—BAR
AIEE e

ERRAR(CE—R"F  OE)RRHM

follows AT ZBENFLTRE -
2017 2016
Sl of -3 —ZE—RE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEHET BEBHET
Salaries and allowances e K2 7.0 8.0
Retirement benefits schemes contributions HENEI R TR 0.4 04
74 8.4

The emoluments of the remaining five (2016: four) highest paid individuals are

within the following bands:

ERRA(CE—RF  OE)RRHM
AL ZBENFUTEE :

Number of employees

Ea2E

2017 2016

=g-—t§ "I 5F

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 7B 1,000,001 TLEEH 1,500,000 3 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 8% 1,500,001 TLE % 2,000,000 7T 2 |

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals and directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors and chief executive has

waived any emoluments during the year.

EFER AREREXAHETIAR
REMEALESERREMAREHE
IMAR e RERABES HEE
ERERTRABRFARRENHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

Br B SRR MY EE

For the year ended December 31,2017

Bz

“EFF A=t BLEFE

TAXATION . BE
2017 2016
—E—tf —E-RE
HK$'M HK$™
REEER BEBET
Deferred taxation (note /7) BEBB(RT17) — 20

The tax charge for the year is reconciled to the loss before taxation as follows:

AEFHIA X HER TR BEEHEN
N

2017 2016
—g-tfE  —FAF
HK$'M HK$'M

BEEET BEBET

Loss before taxation BREiAIER (85.7) (62.0)
Tax credit at the domestic income tax rate of 165%  RAHFTEFH K 16.5% T EHFIAE R (14.1) (102)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose A H1Ff 2 2 AT £ - 1.7
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BRARMBAZTIETE 0.2) (1.5)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ﬁi?’éﬁg RREEE 2 HBEYE 26.6 235
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating REMEEEELEHBRRM

in other jurisdictions RANEIRzZE (5.9) (7.6)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised BAFIAERRAZTBEER (6.4) 4.9)
Others it — 10
Tax charge for the year AEFREX — 20

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 6.5% of estimated assessable profits for

both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is

25%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the

Company for the year is based on the following data:

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

BRER
AERARBRBAMGERENER
THE T HIEER &

2017 2016
it o3 —TRE
HK$'M HK$M
REEER  EREER
Loss: B
Loss for the year attributable to owners AU EBRERER
of the Company and loss for the purposes /NI 2PN
of basic loss per share ZAEEER (85.7) (64.0)
2017 2016
S
Number of ordinary shares: ERRHAA
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ARt ESREREE 2
for the purposes of basic loss per share TRRINETHE 2,599,993,088 2,599,993,088

No dilutive earnings per share is presented for the years ended December 31,

2017 and 2016 as there was no potential ordinary share in issue for both years.

HE2_Z—+tH&R-_T—XF¥+=-A
=T HLFE  BMEZ7EREER
o REMEFETEDRTEELR

A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥M% - #RERRE
Furniture
fixtures and Motor Plant and
Buildings  equipment vehicles machinery Total
B #E8 T
B¥ ET RE R b
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER B¥EER B¥AEER BYAEER EWEER
COST BAE
At January 1,2016 RZZE—RF—-HA—H 06 2790 20 2787 5603
Currency realignment ERTRE — (05) 0.l = (04)
Additions NE — 24 = 5.1 75
Disposals HE (06) (10.3) (02) 7) (138)
At December 31,2016 RZE—RF
+=ZRA=+—-H — 2706 19 281.1 5536
Currency realignment B 5 R — 23 — — 23
Additions RE — 46 02 200 248
Disposals HE — (109) — (15.6) (26.5)
At December 31, 2017 RZT—tF
+=A=+—-8 = 266.6 20 285.5 5542
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

13.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥I% - WERRE (&)
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor Plant and
Buildings  equipment vehicles machinery Total
BAE - KB BERE
gy R&fkE RE NpkEs B
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

E¥EErT A¥EEn EWEER EWEER AWEER

DEPRECIATION e
At January 1, 2016 RZZE—RF—-HA—H 03 2704 1.5 259.1 5313
Currency realignment ERTRE — (05) 0.l = (04)
Provided for the year AEEEHR — 38 02 [1.3 153
Fliminated on disposals HE R 3 03) (103) 02) 7 (13.5)
At December 31,2016 RZF—RF

+=ZA=+—H — 2634 1.6 2677 5327
Currency realignment B 5 R — 23 — — 23
Provided for the year AEEEHR — 32 0. 94 127
Eliminated on disposals R 8 — (108) — (152) (260)
At December 31,2017 R-B—tF

+ZR=+—8H — 258.1 1.7 2619 5217
CARRYING VALUES SREE
At December 31,2017 i

+=B=t+-8 — 8.5 04 236 325
At December 31,2016 RZZT—RF

+ZRA=+—H — 72 03 134 209
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, ME  HENREHNERE  EBEET
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line A EEREFIABETIRITE @ UM
method, at the following rates per annum: EARN  BEZIERDT :
Buildings Over the shorter of the term the lease, s FAEHG 25 F

or 25 years BSEE R

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 10% - 25% B HERERE  10%-25%
Motor vehicles 10% - 20% HE 10% - 20%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20% e 3% 1 R ik 25 10% - 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE_ T tF+_A=t—BLFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 EFEE

Product

development  Patents and

costs trademarks Total
EmMEZERE BSAREE g
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

ER¥EEr E¥EEn RAWEER

CoST RAfE

At January 1,2016 RZZE—R"E—HA—H 243 19.6 439
Additions NE — 03 03
At December 31,2016 RZE—R"E+A=+—H 243 199 442
Additions NE — 0.3 03
At December 31,2017 RZZE—tF+-H=1—H 243 202 A4S
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT B R E

At January 1, 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H 234 15.2 386
Amortised for the year AEFEH 09 1.0 1.9
At December 31,2016 R-F-R"F+-A=t—H 243 162 405
Amortised for the year AEEHIH - 0.7 0.7
At December 31,2017 R_E—tF+-HA=t—H 243 169 412
CARRYING VALUES fREE

At December 31,2017 R-2-t£+-A=1+—-H — 33 33
At December 31, 2016 R-F-R"F+-A=1t—H — 37 37
The above intangible assets, which have finite useful lives, are amortised on a NEBRPEENFTREHRER - RN
straight-line basis over the following periods: THRNERE#E

Product development costs 2 years EmRAEKEA 25

Patents and trademarks 5- 10 years BRREE SEI0F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

GOODWILL 5. &8
HK$'M
BEEER
At January |, 2016, December 31, R_ZE—~"E—A—R —ZE—A"F+-A=+—HK
2016 and December 31, 2017 “E2—+F+-A=+—H 338

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the units are as follows:

BEZEREIE TZEEM 2B RN
T :

2017 2016
—g-tfE  —FAF
HK$'M HK$M
BEEET BEBET
Time and weather consumer electronic
products unit in health and wellness segment BERREDBABREARET HE
(‘CGU A" EmEM([BIREMLA]) 17.5 17.5
Telecommunications consumer electronic
products unit in connected home and BRZxEIBAEAEFHE
communications segment (“CGU B") EmEf([8IRERB]) 16.3 163
338 338
The management of the Group determined that there was no impairment of any AEEVEBERATHAEHEBZER

of its CGUs containing goodwill for both years.

The recoverable amounts of the CGU A and CGU B have been determined based
on a value in use calculation. The calculation used cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management for the next year. Cash flows beyond
the next year are extrapolated using zero growth rate. Management estimated
discount rate of 12% (2016: 12%) for both CGU A and CGU B using a risk-free
rate, the market return and CGU specific risk factors. The key assumptions are
annual growth rates and expected gross margin which were estimated based on
past experience and expectations of future changes in the market. Management
considered that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount of both CGUs to exceed the aggregate

recoverable amount of respective CGUs.

ﬁfﬂﬁéﬁﬂﬁi@ﬂ%?ﬂiﬂjﬁﬁﬁ °

%ﬁﬁﬁAﬁJﬁﬁuBZTW@éﬁ
ERBERBEHEENETE - %8
iﬁ%@ﬁa@@ﬁﬁzmiﬁﬁﬁ”
BEMNBLRERN - REBZRER
BANTERER - EEENERRA
- migRRKEEIREL ARERRA
%%ﬁ#%ﬁﬁuA&%ﬁﬁuBZmL
ZHBRERE 12%(ZF—RF : 12%) °

ERJ[IFERERBEHENE - lltTJ
BRATLRLENTS LAORRE
B ERERREMNBRE 2B

NNE  BreEKmERRERL 2
FHAERARRIREL 2 AIKEES
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

Br B SRR MY EE

For the year ended December 31,2017

Bz

16.

“EFF A=t BLEFE

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS le. AHLERE
In 2016, the amount represented 2.92% unlisted equity investments in a private RZF—RF  RBRFLTRERE
entity that was established in Korea. They were measured at cost less impairment BB 2 FAAE B2 292% B K
at the end of the reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value B RERBURRBRERBER R
estimates was so significant that the directors of the Company were of the opinion BEFE  DERGGEBRATEZE
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably. AERNBARBESRARATEE
AR E -
In the opinion of director, the investment may not be able to generate the future BEERR RARZT—LFRUE
economic benefit to the Group and is fully impaired in profit or loss in 2017. AEBEERKLENR  WRERA
ZEBIE °
DEFERRED TAXATION 17. BEBE
The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets recognised and TREINRAFERBE EJ* R
movements thereon during the current and prior year: EREEVE(ABR)EEREEE
Product
development Tax Total
costs losses Total
Em
FR A REEE B
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
E¥EET AB¥EEn BWEER
At January 1,2016 RZZE—RF—-HA—H (0.5) 25 20
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss for the year AEF N AR B 0.5 (25) (2.0)

RZE—REFR-_F—

At December 31,2016 and 2017 +-A=+—H

tF

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
HK$1,230.3 million (2016: HK$1,113.4 million) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams in 2016 and 2017. Included in the
unrecognised tax losses were losses of HK$58.7 million (2016: HK$57.9 million that
would expire in the years of 2017 to 2021) that will expire in the years of 2018 to
2022. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

INVENTORIES 18. #E&
2017 2016
—T-tH —BRF
HK$'M HK$'™M
BEEET BEBET
Raw materials R# 513 46.7
Work in progress & 10.3 132
Finished goods IPK 68.8 423
130.4 1022
During the year, there was an increase in the net realisable value of certain finished FR-ARTELR BTHEKm2A
goods due to market price rise. As a result, a reversal of write-down of HK$3.3 ZEVFEEMEM - Bt - MORRE B
million (2016:HK$25.1 million) has been recognised and included in cost of goods B33EBL(ZE-—RF: B%K25I8
sold. B )ERRMTAMLEE MR o
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. BUERRREMERRE

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful
debts) presented based on the invoice date which approximate the respective

revenue recognition date at the reporting date.

REEBEE BURIMERERE
& REZDH(ZEREAEKERER
HERE) 252 REDTWT :

2017 2016
B of - —E—RF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEHER BEBRET
(restated)
(E5)
0 to 30 days 0&30H 48.8 589
31 to 90 days 3l H290H 64.2 329
Over 90 days 0B E 4. 14.8
Trade receivables JE U BR =X 117.1 106.6
Other receivables H i e W5 454 56.9
Total trade and other receivables JRE ST BR X e L e I R TR 4B R 162.5 [63.5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group normally allows credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers. Before
accepting any new customers, the management of the Group will base on the
credit quality of the potential customers to define credit limits. Credit limits to

customers are reviewed annually.

The trade receivable balances of HK$113.0 million (2016: HK$91.8million) are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss since they are mainly the customers

with good quality.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balances are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$4.1 million (2016: HK$14.8 million) which are past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss, as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the Group believes that the amounts are still recoverable as there are continuing

subsequent settlement.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$23.1 million (2016: HK$13.6 million)
which have either been placed under liquidation or in financial difficulties. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:

YRR R BN RIER ()

AEE-RETEFAENENEE
B ZMEMHEL A AEEERE
ERREEEEPNEEEZATEREE
RE - AEFRINEEREEEFE

3 -

B @iF

RBEBRR  AREWETRAERS
MEKEREHAEE13088L(ZF
—NE BB SEEL) AR
B RERBESHAREER -

AAREE Z EBWIR R ARRE B
REBHEMARBY EFRAERE
FEREZEEES £EE4I BELT(Z
TR F:EK148FE8L)  TERE
BEEZVTEEASY BERHER—EE
ImALEEEZS2ENIRE -

FEEBEEREEMNREEY REBE
FRNFREEHRRER B I BET(Z
T-RF BB BEET)NERER
P AREYERASERTHEME
o e

ERHERREZ BYIRR < Kk

2017 2016

—E-tF NS

HK$'M HK$'M

BEEEBT BERET

Overdue less than 90 days AHEARE 90 A 22 137
Overdue 90 to 360 days 90 HZE 360 H 1.9 I
4. 14.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BUWERRRHEMERREE)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables: FEMBE N RER B 2 &
2017 2016
Sl of -3 S NGE
HK$'M HK$'M

BEEER BEBET

Balance at beginning of the year F&ER 13.6 132
Currency realignment BE 5 B 0.3 04
Impairment loss for the year FRRERSR 9.2 —
Balance at end of the year R 23.1 136
Other receivables H fth IR
2017 2016
“E-tF —TRF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEERT BERETL
(restated)
(fe=7)
Advances to suppliers [r) {1t & 7 24 5K 32.8 44.6
Other taxes recoverable H fth ] 4 3175 5K 72 57
Others Hit 5.4 66
454 56.9
Included in trade and other receivables are the following amounts denominated JE U BR 20 N Eh E R TE B2 3E TN B LA B
in currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they HEBTRB N EB NN EEFE
relate: LA
2017 2016
S A
HK$'M HK$'™M

REEEER BEARET

Renminbi (“RMB") ARE 23 29
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

20.

21.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. SHITEHREAS
Bank balances and cash comprised cash held by the Group and bank deposits with RITERER ORI EBFACEE
an original maturity of three months or less are at prevailing market interest rates in RBOEF FARRZRIBER=
the range of 0.50% to 1.75% (2016: 0.38% to 4.50%) per annum. ERKAT  RBITHHMETE  F
MENFOS0BEI7SE(ZB—REF
038 EZE450F)
Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts denominated in RITHEARRREAETIAEBAREE
currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they B EB AN EREEHE 2 TR
relate:
2017 2016
—E-tH —TREF
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER LEL- W
usD e 8.2 105
RMB AR 8.0 162
16.2 26.7
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. BNERIREMEARE

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice

RESHR  BRNERREZAHZT

date at the end of the reporting period: ZERE AT

2017 2016
t et —B—RF
HK$'M HK$'™M

BEEET EEEET

(restated)

(g&51)

0 to 30 days 0&30H 25.2 10.0
31 to 90 days 3IHZ90H 47.7 282
Over 90 days 90 B E 37.6 18.1
Trade payables PR 110.5 563
Other payables H e RIE 82.4 88.8
Trade and other payables FE BR BN S Bt JE 5 5008 192.9 145.1

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T



21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

21.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

BARAR L MENREE)

Other payables HitEA R
2017 2016
t et —BF
HK$'M HK$'M
BYEET BERET
Advance from customers BRNEFPRE 4.6 356
Payable for staff costs FERTE IR 29.0 423
Payable for audit service B RIS R 2.7 32
Other tax payables H e 28 0.6
Others it 53 A
Total other payables Hfth e IA R ER 82.4 88.8
Included in trade and other payables are the following amounts denominated in R 1~ BR 50 % L4t B 5 BRIE L 48 T 51 A MR
currency other than the functional currency of the group entities to which they BEEERB N EB U EREHE
relate: S S
2017 2016
it ot —ERF
HK$'M HK$'M
BYEEET BERET
RMB ARE 320 18.6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BWRME

For the year ended December 31,2017

gz2=

22.

E—tF+A=+—RIEE

BORROWING 2. fEX
2017 2016
—E-tH —TRF
HK$'M HK$'M
BY®EET AERET
Secured, repayable within | year and BER R—FREER

shown under current liability RBBEETET

355 —

On December 8, 2017, a subsidiary of the Group, BB E T (FINER A A,
entered into a loan agreement with a financial institution to borrow RMB30,000,000
(equivalent to HK$35,500,000) at a fixed interest rate of 8% per annum. The
borrowing was pledged by the trade debts with the other inter-group companies

and the borrowing will mature within one year.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T

R-Z—+t&+=-AN\B AEEHH
BRAASBHETF(RIDBRARE K
SRBBIT L ERGE - UREEMNE
S EQE 15 5 A R ¥ 300000007 (i E
FA A 35,500,000 7T ) © f& R £ E A &
BABRAIMESRRER  R—FR
B8 o



23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

SHARE CAPITAL 23, RAX
Number Amount
of shares HK$'M
RO#E 2
Authorised: EERAE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEAKI0TALERN
At January |, 2016 and December 31,2016 RZE-—RE-A—HRK
“ERFtZA=1+—H 3,500,000,000 3500
Increase in authorised share capital ETERAIE N 16,500,000,000 1,650.0
At December 31,2017 R-_F—tF+-A=1+—H 20,000,000,000 2,0000
Ordinary shares of US$0.10 each BREEOIOETHTRRG
At January |, 2016 and December 31, 2016 RZZE-—RF-A—BNK
and December 31, 2017 “E-AFTZA=Zt-HR
“2—t%+-A=+—H 10,000 —
Issued and fully paid: BRTRHR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREEELI0THLEBERD
At January 1, 2016 and December 31, 2016 RZF-—RFE-HA—-HULE
and December 31,2017 “E-RETZA=T-BK
—E—tF+=ZHA=1—H 2,599,993,088 2600

Pursuant to the Company's announcement dated on March 15, 2017, the

authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$350,000,000 and
US$1,000 divided into 3,500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each and 10,000
ordinary shares of US$0.10 each respectively to HK$2,000,000,000 and US$1,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each and 10,000 ordinary
shares of US$0.10 each respectively by creation of 16,500,000,000 additional

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each, which is rank pari passu in all respects with the

existing shares of the Company in issue.

BEARAIBSHA-T—+tF=A+H
B# RS 3% & 16500000000 8%
SREESEIOTHETAR  HAX
X Bl ) E TE MR 7K B 7 6 350,000,000 7T
% 1,000 7&(% % 3,500,000,000 B% & A%
B % %0107 & & @ A& & 10,000
BREECIORTHNEEAR)  BME
7 12,000,000,000 7T & 1,0003% (5 &
20,000,000,000 R G R EEE#0.10 T E
AR K 10000 FREEO.I0ETE R
R ZEROEERRAMERECE
TRONRETAZARSES °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

Br B SRR MY EE

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

24.

25.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting periods.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern while maximising the retum to stakeholders through
the optimisation of debts and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and borrowing.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a regular basis. As
part of this review, the management of the Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associates with the capital, and takes appropriate actions through raising

debts to adjust the Group's capital structure.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 26. £RIE
Categories of financial instruments ERMIEER
2017 2016
Sl of -3 S NGE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER AEBRET
(restated)
(&=51)
Financial assets TREE
Loans and receivables BRI N E
(including cash and cash equivalents) (RERELERRELER) 159.7 1939
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE - 09
159.7 194.8
Financial liabilities g =V
Amortised cost BB 154.0 66.6
Financial risk management objectives and policies HRERERERERBER

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
available-for-sale investments, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and
borrowing. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management of the Company manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

FEBZIESRTIABHEBRERK
HiEYRHRR - AIHERE « RITH
BERE  BNRFEEMEMNTEAR
fEs - ZEeMIAFEREHBME
RE - BZZeRIAAHAZARBRE
mERR(EERER) EERRLRE
SRR - BBNAREZ SRR K
ST ARRIEREEERER
SRR - DARELR KB A0 AU SR EUE
F °

T

A
4 &

¢

JHliS
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017

26.

BE_Z—+tF+-_A=1—HItFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk
Currency risk

Certain of the Group's bank balances and cash, trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables are denominated in RMB and USD which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk attributable to the fluctuations in the exchange rates
of RMB and USD against HK$, the functional currency of the respective group

entities.

The Group currently has not entered into any contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risk exposure. The management monitors foreign exchange risk exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arises.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary

assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities
g
2017

¢RMIAE)
BHEAREZERRBEE)

kT
EXER

AEBAETRITEGEAS - BURERN
B E At B MR IR A B N R R B L B
NRENARE RETTAHE - AL
BAAXAARBEETAAT(RBE
BEROMEER) CEXKFIIL 2
R o

REB B AT T AR S KA E o
KRR EEESERIIEERREES
ZREBHMBAINEER o

AREMINEEBEREERBRER

WmERM EEERT
Assets
&
2016 2017 2016

Bt TR ZEB-tF —T-RF

HK$'M

HK$'™M HK$'M HK$™

BEEET AXEErT BWEBR B¥EER

UsD eIy —
RMB AR 67.5

— 82 10.5
18.6 10.3 19.1
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2016: 5%) increase and
decrease in the functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2016: 5%) sensitivity rate represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% (2016: 5%)
change in foreign currency rates. The analysis has excluded USD denominated
monetary items as HKD, the functional currency of the group entity holding these
monetary items, is pegged to USD. The directors consider that the currency risk
in this regard is minimal. A positive number below indicates an increase in post-
tax loss for the year where functional currency strengthens 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies, there would be an equal and

opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the balances below would be negative.

26.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE
SMIAE)
BREBREREERBEKE)

TEEE(E)
BRI

TRAVEAEASEHEFREEER
LW EM L BBINEFE RO ES%
(ZE2—RE  5%) ZHRBE 5%(ZF
—NEF 5% MBRERKREREHINEG
EERSEAAEH 2T HREHN
ERERANNETENEMIER
B RERESU(ZF—NF : 5%) K5
EFBARRESTHREER - ZHTUA
POREETEEZERER  RERES
HhEEEMER  SEERZHEY
BLDEETHS - EERREALEH
ZEMBRRBMTEE - THIERKT
WIEE BB B BINETHE S BHZE
EHRRTEBEOEN - WEEHEE
BER M EE A EBINERESS
HeHRReERERESERER ¥
2 MTIEBRERBE -

Effect on post-tax result for the year

HAFERBRARE2XE

2017 2016

“E—tF “T—RE

HK$'M HK$'M

BETET BEGET

RMB AR 2.4 —

In management’s opinion, the analysis is used for reference purpose and is
unrepresentative of the inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does not

reflect the exposure during the year.

EEER/UOMRAMIELERE - M
RERZABRI T RRFERN AR - H
HHBRESTEAL 2 ERRRY B
RIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

26.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure of Group entities to
perform their obligations in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivable regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade receivables, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and customers spread across

diverse industries and geographical areas.

The credit risk for bank deposits is considered minimal as such amounts are placed

in banks with high credit ratings.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with

|oan covenants.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T

26.

¢RMIAE)
BHEAREZERRBEE)

EEmERE

RESHR - ARERAKE
RERCHATBREERETT
BEARERIRBRAZEREER
- REAMBMRRMEZTE FZ
REE- SREEERR  A&EZE
BECHEK-ENMEEETEPER
RE - EEHZ URHEMEERFI
HECRER R IR AE 5 b A W 1 B E 15 08 -
o ARETE B S E R B AR 2
R Ui ] 5K 78 A A A ] W B SRR A
REREBRE -FUME FRAEF
RRAEEZEERRD ARHE -

‘m}

x\‘*F “’1“1
ﬂ \UTIM i
=
=

AEBERUERYBESEET ZEER
& BEERDDBETIRTERLE
ZEEAZXFHFREP -

RITEREFTEZ EERBEE A
& RZEFALFRRBEREFRLZ
|7 °

HBEZ/EE

EERBDERRAIE  BEERA
$E@EHT&$HEﬂZﬁ$&7H
BeBEAKF UREAESELEEH
BEZESRAERERERSZY
2 -EEEERGEZERBRRER
BRERRL -



26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based on

agreed repayment dates. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Liguidity and interest risk tables

Weighted
average
effective

interest rate

ik B!
BERRx
%

26.

On demand
or within

3 months

EZX
=EAR
HK$'M

% BEBER

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE
SMIAE)
BREBREREERBEKE)

RBELmE(E)

TRFFIRERABNETIGR  FEE
EREBZHTAHOIEAE - BIFTE
TRMABME  ZRDIRERAKEA
BEZEFRAMHECEBAGB IR
RRGRERHE - HHTEERAR
ZABMBARERT ZENRA - Z&E
BERERAENRERE -

RBEE RFIEF R

Total Carrying

3 months undiscounted  amount at

to | year  cash flows year end
AR

ZEAE HERE £X

—f B fREE

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

EY¥EET E¥EER E¥EER

2017 it o3
Non-derivative financial liabilities FirESRmEE
Trade and other payables FE{ BR 50 R B JE 9 3008 — 1185 — 1185 1185
Borrowing & 8% — 36.9 36.9 355
1185 36.9 155.4 154.0
2016 —BNF
Non-derivative financial liabilities FirESmEE
Trade and other payables (restated) FESEREFR
kEMENFAR(ED]) — 666 — 666 66.6
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

26.

27.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. SWMIAE)
Fair value AF¥E
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are REENAGTE eREERERAR
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on ZATEIRENGERBERENTA
discounted cash flow analysis. EROLAREBREETE -
The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial EERANGE M BRRP AEHEKR
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements s eREERERARC EEESR
approximates to their fair values. HRATERE -
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ~ 27. REZHHRELAEHE
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liability arising from financing activity, TE&HAEBEREEHHELAR
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liability arising from financing activity is JEH(BERES LIRS )EE o
that for which cash flow was, or future cash flow will be, classified in the Group's BRETHELHABAREERS
consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flow from financing activity. ABAHEENEAREEIHHREES
RENAEREIARRLRE -
Borrowing
B
HK$'M
BEEET
At January 1, 2017 R-ZE—+F—H—H —
Financing cash flow RMERERE 353
Finance cost =N 02
At December 31,2017 R=F—+F+-_A=1—H 355
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS/ ARRANGEMENT

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group was committed to make the
following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

the terms of which is three to five years, fall due as follows:

28.

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

ReEHERE /29
AEEEREEA
RBEHR  AERERBEIAIHE K

ERNEEBAZERFIH)ORK
HERAMKAENT :

2017 2016
—E-tF —TRE
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEER BERET
Rented premises HEME

Within one year —ER 19.3 28.8
In the second to fifth year inclusive —ERFEN(BREEME) 23.0 404
423 69.2

The Group as lessor AEBERABA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants which

are negotiated for terms of three to five years for the following future minimum

RESHR ARBEEPRBMENE
A BHR=-ZREHE  ARKE

lease payments in respect of factory premises: BHNTAET -
2017 2016
e A
HK$'M HK$'™M
REEEER BEBET

Rented premises HENE

Within one year —ER 79 85
In the second to fifth year inclusive “ERFR(BREERRE) 16.8 25.6
24.7 34.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 9. BEALRS
Apart from the transactions and the balances with related parties disclosed Rt SEEMBREAMEHF RN A
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the Group also entered into ERGREBI AEERFAZHEB
the following significant transaction with related parties during the year: ERETUTEARRS
2017 2016
S A
HK$'M HK$™

REEEER BEEET

Consignment commission fee to mETRRMBRAXNHORERE
certain fellow subsidiaries 0.6 —
Sales of goods to certain fellow subsidiaries mETHBAREEER — 04
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the EEREMTEEEEKEFANTH
year was as follows: T :
2017 2016
—E-tF “TRF
HK$'M HK$'M
BREER BEBET
— Salary, allowance and other benefits —5&  REREMERN 18.1 [1.0
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —RKEH 2K 0.7 06
18.8 1.6
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management is EENHMTEEREAEZME R EI
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the performance of ZEgRERNA T 2RER RT%5EH MK

o

-
3
fal

individuals and market trends.
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company's principal subsidiaries, are all
indirectly wholly owned by the Company except Huger Electronics GmbH which
is 99.83% indirectly owned by the Company. Details of the Company's principal

subsidiaries at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/

establishment

Nominal
value of issued
ordinary share/

registered capital

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-F—tF-ASt-ALEE
30. FENBAF

RZEBE-—LtFRZ
ST-BARAIREEIEMBARH AR
NRIEE2EBHER © tEHuger Eletronics
GmbH (7 2 7] & # % 5 99.83%) bR 5h
ARAFEMNBRAR-ZT—tFER=

T AEtTASH—AZHEENT

—~NE+ZA

Principal activities

ERTER

AR,/ RHGYEE/
WEAEEH PR 4 3 dfmEr TEXH
Cheer Win Electronics (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd. (Note) ~ the PRC US$4,440,000  Manufacture and sales of consumer electronic products
EREF(RINARAR (M) i 4440000XTT HERHETTHREER
IDT Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Trading of consumer electronic products
ERRHBRAR] &b AT BEETHEEM
ERET(RINEBAA (Note) the PRC HK$35,000000  Manufacture of consumer electronic products and plastic parts
BRETFORIERAR (M) H B#350000007C  and provision of surface mount technology assembly services

REBTHEERNEB M LR REE AR

Oregon Scientific France SARL France EURI000000  Marketing and distribution of consumer electronic products
Oregon Scientific France SARL A | 000000BAT.  HEERAHEFHEEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

30. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 30. XEMBARGE
Nominal
Place of value of issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital  Principal activities
BRITER
AL/ RGEE/
HWEARER odvgiit AMER  TEEH
Oregon Scientific Global Distribution Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Marketing and distibution of consumer electronic products
BEDRRARAH BB AEIT  REROVHETHEER
Oregon Scientific Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$500000  Marketing and distribution of consumer electronic products
BREEARRAR BR B0 HERDHETHEER
Oregon Scientific talia Sp.A. ltaly EUR2,156000  Marketing and distribution of consumer electronic products
Oregon Scientifc ftalia SpA. EAN 25600088 EERAHEFHEEM
Oregon Scientific Smartliving Limited Hong Kong HK$2  Marketing and distnbution of consumer electronic products
BRESESDEBRAR &R AEIT  REROVHETHEER
Note: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the PRC. Wit - RAPBER 2 2INERER
All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their respective place of TR TEMBAR TR EAEMA
incorporation/ establishment, 3/ PRI B AT o
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of FRRNEESRREAEERELE
the directors, principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To give details EBRERVEIHBLAR - EFRA
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of SIS E A A B2 BB T
excessive length. X °
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities outstanding at the end of RAFER - SHBRFHETFTHR
the year. BEZEBES °
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries that are

not material to the Group. Details of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

IEHBATE

WRESK  AATRALMYEALEE
YRERHHBAT - ZEWEA T
SHEBRIT -

Number of subsidiaries

TEEE ES SRSk WEARHA
2017 2016
—g-tF  “I-AF
Marketing and distribution of consumer Germany 2 2
electronic products: =H
EERDHEEFHEBEM Brazil I
B
Spain |
i &g
United Kingdom |
=
United States Of America |
e
PRC 3 3
5
Marketing and distribution of Wellness and Hong Kong |
beauty products: BB
Trading of consumer electronic products: Hong Kong |
BEETHEBER Bt
Japan |
SE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

30.

31

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 30. XEMBARGE
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
IRED EBENETEDH WEARHE
2017 2016
—g-tF  “I-AF
Trading of telecommunication products: Hong Kong | |
BEERAER : 0
Investment holding: Singapore |
RER K
Provision of group administrative services: Hong Kong |
REEETHRS - &R
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 3. HAREE

An indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Oregon Scientific Brasil Ltda,,
was involved in a tax dispute with the State of Sao Paulo, the Federative Republic
of Brazil, which may cause a maximum tax payment including penalty and interest
of approximately Brazilian Real 3.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$8.4
million). After seeking the independent legal advice, the directors of the Company
consider that the outcome and the amount of final payment, if any, are uncertain,

and no provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

IDT INTERNATIONAL LIMITED BREMAERA T

ARF KR E 2 EM B2 FOregon
Scientific Brasil Ltda £5F 7B 5 SE 0 B0 B2
REMZEEBBAUD - AT ERANR
aRR(EEIeRFEAR3ISAER
AETRAERNS4BEEL)) - £
BEABERERE  ARAEERR
BRREBNREE(WNE)LTHE
BYERGERTEMRIEL R -



32.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

Financial information of the Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

ARRNHEER
RWESRR - RARANMBERN B -

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF
HK$'M HK$'M

BEEER BEBET

ASSETS BE

Interests in subsidiaries RETB A Al H s 174.4 2844

Other receivables H i el z0A 0.5 04

Bank balances and cash BITEHRKRIRE 0.2 0.1
175.1 2849

LIABILITY af

Other payables Hfth e 501 34 (W

NET ASSETS BEFE 171.7 2837

CAPITAL AND RESERVES R

Share capital B 260.0 2600

Reserves [ (88.3) 23.7

TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 171.7 2837
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

32.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY (continued) 32. KRARMMBENE
Reserves of the Company KRR

Share  Accumulated

premium losses Total
R s E 25tEBE B
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

ER¥EET BE¥EEx BWEAER

At January |, 2016 RZE—AE—A—B 1650 (1382) 268
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year ~ NFEEE R 2 HE R Y 45 = 3.1 B
At December 31,2016 RZE-RFT-A=+—H 165.0 (141.3) 237
Loss and total comprehensive expenses for the year  AFEEE R EZERAS B — (1120) (1120)
At December 31,2017 R-B—tF+=-HA=+—-H 165.0 (253.3) (88.3)
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
KREVBHHRE

For the year ended December 31,2017
BE-Z—+5+-A=t-HIFE

Nine-month

period ended

December 31,
Year ended December 31, 2015 Year ended March 31,
tZAZ+-HLEFE BHE_T-1f BEZA=t-BLEE
2017 016 +=A=1-H 2015 2014
ZB-tF “E-RE IEAEAR “T-1f e S 2
HK$'M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

EREER EREET EREETL AREET EEEET

RESULTS £

Revenue B 5166 565.0 5366 1,100.4 13524

Loss before taxation BREAER (85.7) (620) (86.1) (57.2) (52.1)

Taxation HE S (20) (0.) 98) (167)

Loss for the year/period AEE/BHEE (85.7) (64.0) (86.2) (67.0) (68.9)

Attributable to : BT AL :

Owners of the Company AREHBA (85.7) (64.0) (862) (67.0) (688)

Non-controlling interests R ER - - - - -
(85.7) (64.0) (86.2) (67.0) (688)

Loss per share BREE

—Basic -2 (3-30) HK cents  (246) HK cents ~ (3.32) HK cents  (2.59) HK cents  (2.75) HK cents

AR gl gl A gl
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
KEHBHHRE

For the year ended December 31,2017
HE_Z—+H+_A=t—-BLFE

As at December 31,

As at March 31,

R+t=A=t-H R=A=1t—-H
2017 2016 2015 2015 2014
i 3 —TRF —5-1f —E-1F —Z-MmF
HK$'M HK$M HKSM HK$M HK$M
BYEETR ARRETL AERET BYREL AEAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Total assets BEE 408.1 4145 5195 655.7 828.2
Total liabilities Baf (2284) (145.1) (188.0) (245.7) (348.4)
179.7 2694 315 4100 4798
Fquity attributable to owners ARAHBA 179.6 2693 3314 4099 4797
of the Company FElhER
Non-controlling interests R ER 0.1 0.l 0.l 0.l 0.l
179.7 2694 315 4100 4798
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